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For organisations whose operations and
people depend upon remote communications,
Speedcast is the ideal global partner; bringing
together the best high-speed communications
networks with a suite of networking and
application innovations to deliver a superior
customer experience, anytime, anywhere.
We achieve this by providing:
Deep commitment to customers and bestin-class support, leveraging our agile and
responsive culture and world-class teams
with 1,500+ experienced and passionate
people in 40+ countries, including 250
engineers, and 24/7 multilingual technical
support centres on six continents

Tailored, flexible and innovative solutions
adapted to customers’ diverse and
changing needs

A highly reliable and global network of
networks – multi-band satellite network,
spanning multiple orbits, with more
bandwidth than any other service provider,
combined with extensive multi-technology
terrestrial networks

Professional Services, putting subject
matter experts on the ground with our
customers to help them to solve their most
challenging technical and operational
problems

Annual Report 2018

About this report
This annual report is a summary of
Speedcast’s operations, activities and
financial performance and position as
at 31 December 2018. In this report
references to ‘Speedcast’, ‘the
Company’, ‘we’, ‘us’ and ‘our’ refer to
Speedcast International Limited (ABN
50 600 699 241), unless otherwise
stated.
References in this report to a ‘year’
are to the financial year ended 31
December 2018 unless otherwise
stated. All dollar figures are expressed
in U.S. dollars (USD) unless
otherwise stated.
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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

John Mackay, AM
Chairman

In 2018 Speedcast further solidified
its position as the leading remote
communications services provider in the
world. We now serve more than 3,200
customers in over 140 countries across
a diverse range of industries including
Maritime, Energy, Mining, Government,
Enterprise, Telecommunications and Media.
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Dear Shareholders,
As Chairman of the Board of Directors, it is my pleasure to present the Speedcast
International Limited (‘Speedcast’) annual report for the financial year ended
31 December 2018.
In 2018 Speedcast further solidified its position as the world’s leading remote
communications services provider. We now serve more than 3,200 customers
in over 140 countries across a diverse range of industries including Maritime,
Energy, Mining, Government, Enterprise, Telecommunications and Media. We
completed the acquisition of Globecomm in December 2018, which almost
doubles the scale of our revenue in the high growth global government
sector and brings both significant cost and revenue synergy opportunities. In
addition, we celebrated the signing of the two largest contracts in the history
of the Company, with NBN Co in Australia and Carnival Corporation in the U.S.
Despite these achievements in 2018, our financial performance was weaker
than we expected. While we achieved strong organic growth in three of our
Divisions – Maritime, EEM and Government - we were impacted by the delay in
recovery in the Energy market, which affected our results and led to adjusted
guidance during the year. This impact was reflected in a disappointing year for
our share price.
In 2019, our primary focus will be to build on the strong foundations of the
business and deliver organic growth across our business. This will allow us to
continue to invest for growth as well as, importantly, reduce our debt leverage.
I am optimistic about Speedcast’s growth prospects for 2019. One of the main
reasons for this is that we have been able to build an outstanding global
platform, with the best leadership team in the industry. Our management
team, led by CEO PJ Beylier was significantly strengthened during the year by
the additions of John Truschinger as CIO, Clive Cuthell as CFO and Vanessa
Cardonnel as SVP Corporate Development & Investor Relations. We have
also been joined by an outstanding COO, Sebastien Lehnherr, in early 2019.
These blue-chip additions to the Exco team reflect a broader strengthening of
personnel throughout the organisation and Speedcast’s ability to attract the
best talent.

Speedcast has

1,500
employees in
40+ countries

Serving

3,200

customers in 140 countries

Connecting over

10,000
maritime vessels

And over

7,000
terrestrial sites

The team has also made great strides in streamlining and improving our global
product offerings, efficiently integrating systems and processes across our
business and improving our infrastructure.
I am excited about the possibilities created by the combination of our
outstanding team, broad product portfolio, strong market position and real
tailwinds across the industries we serve.
I want to thank my fellow Directors for their hard work, dedication and support.
I particularly want to acknowledge our two outgoing directors, Ed Sippel and
Michael Berk for their outstanding contribution to Speedcast over the years
and as well to warmly welcome Caroline van Scheltinga who joined our Board
in 2018. Lastly, and most importantly, I want to sincerely thank our customers
and investors for their ongoing support of Speedcast.

Sincerely yours,
John Mackay, AM
Chairman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REPORT

PJ Beylier
CEO

Speedcast is now the largest provider of
remote communications and IT services
in the world. Our fully managed service
is delivered via a leading global, multiaccess-technology, multi-band and multiorbit network of 80+ satellites and an
interconnecting global terrestrial network,
bolstered by extensive on the ground local
support in more than 40 countries.
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Dear Shareholders,
For the full year 2018 revenue grew 21%, including 5% organic revenue
growth, and Underlying EBITDA increased 7% compared to 2017. Although we
delivered organic revenue growth in three of our divisions, our Energy division
continued to decline due to ongoing volatility in oil prices and delays to the
Energy market recovery. Our results overall for 2018 were below our original
expectations.
Despite the challenges, the team continued during the year to build our unique
and market-leading platform. Speedcast is now the largest provider of remote
communications and IT services in the world. Our fully managed service
is delivered via a leading global, multi-access-technology, multi-band and
multi-orbit network of 80+ satellites and an interconnecting global terrestrial
network. This is bolstered by extensive on the ground local support in more
than 40 countries. I believe that Speedcast is truly unique in the industry with
our proven track record, global scale and world-class support delivered by a
team of 1,500 experienced and passionate people. This positions us well for
future growth.

Divisional Performance
Speedcast is comprised of four divisions – Maritime, Energy, Enterprise &
Emerging Markets (EEM) and Government. Maritime, EEM and Government
all had healthy organic growth in 2018. Maritime revenue grew close to
10%, driven by increased sales in both Commercial Shipping and Cruise. EEM
revenue grew 27% primarily as a result of Phase 1 of the National Broadband
Network (NBN) project in Australia. The Government division was newly formed
after the acquisition of UltiSat on 1 November, 2017 and in 2018 delivered 16%
revenue growth, driven by increased U.S. government spending and strong
organic growth in airborne intelligence, surveillance, and reconnaissance (ISR)
solutions. Within Energy, we saw a revenue decline of 14%, due to the delay
in recovery of the Energy market, in particular in deep water drilling activity.
However, it is important to note that Energy revenue in the second half grew
8% versus the first half.

Key Milestones
In 2018, we signed the two largest contracts in Speedcast history with NBN Co.
in Australia and Carnival Corporation in the US.
NBN is a 10-year contract with Australian government-owned infrastructure
provider NBN Co. to enable enterprise-grade satellite services. Though the
contract required significant investment in working capital in 2018, Speedcast
will see cash inflow over the course of 2019 as contractual milestones are met.
Signed in December 2018 and with a term of three years, the Carnival contract
is the largest commercial VSAT contract in the industry. Speedcast will be
providing connectivity and managing the networks for approximately 100
ships, each carrying 3,000 to 6,000 people around the world. We are also
deploying our newly announced Speedcast TrueBeamTM system, which will
bring higher reliability to our connectivity services for Carnival.
Our acquisition of Globecomm in December 2018 accelerates Speedcast’s
push into the Government market. The acquisition adds scale, visibility and
capabilities in this growth market. As we integrate Globecomm, we expect
revenue synergies to contribute to growth over the next three years through
both cross-selling opportunities and increased customer win rates.

Corporate Milestones
2018
Speedcast acquired Globecomm

2017
Speedcast acquired UltiSat and formed
Government Division
Speedcast acquired Harris CapRock

2016
Speedcast acquired USAT and WINS
Limited

2015
Speedcast acquired Hermes
Datacomms, Geolink Satellite Services,
NewSat, SAIT Communication,
NewCom International, and ST Teleport

2014
Speedcast acquired Oceanic
Broadband and Satcomms Australia
Speedcast listed on ASX
Speedcast formed Energy Division

2013
Speedcast acquired Electrikom and Pactel

2012
TA Associates completed buyout of
Speedcast
Speedcast acquired ASC

2008
Speedcast formed Maritime Division

2003
Pactel International founded in Sydney

2000
AsiaSat became a primary shareholder
of Speedcast

1999
Speedcast founded in Hong Kong
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Awards and Achievements
Growth in Commerical
Shipping

Maritime

9.7%

Revenue growth

Delay in Energy
market recovery

Energy

13.6%

decrease in Revenue

Strong

EEM

26.8%
Revenue growth

Robust organic growth

12.0%

driven by airborne
Government ISR and solution
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In 2018, we continued to expand our capabilities and develop solutions that
bring value to our customers and through the year we were recognised by the
Australian Communications Industry (ACOMM), Euroconsult and VSAT Global
with various product innovation awards.
Speedcast received the ACOMM award for our continuing work on Christmas
Island, a remote Australian territory in the Indian Ocean. We were recognised
for our responsiveness, strong operational expertise and customer service
after the local ISP ceased to provide internet services to the 1,900 Christmas
Island locals and businesses in March 2017. The service disruption cut off locals
from friends and family on the mainland and impeded their ability to conduct
business and order food for the island.
Together with Carnival Cruise Line, Speedcast received the 2018 “Smartship
Award of the Year” from Euroconsult for the companies’ partnership in
delivering 3.174 Gbps throughput on-board the new Carnival Horizon ship.
The unparalleled data rate sets the guest satisfaction standard that Speedcast
will deliver to guests and crew on-board Carnival’s Vista-class ships.
Speedcast was also honoured with the 2018 “Service Provider of the Year” award
at the VSAT Stellar Awards during VSAT Global 2018. The Service Provider of
the Year award recognised Speedcast for developing our new industry-leading
“network of networks”. The combined network provides users with access to
the largest global system of satellites available, combining wide beam satellites
for coverage and narrower higher throughput beams for better efficiency and
bigger bandwidth, and to a wide terrestrial network. This approach enhances
flexibility and redundancy, allowing customers to meet their dynamic business
needs and achieve a consistent user experience globally.
Last but not least, we were able to achieve global OHSAS and ISO certifications,
and World Teleport Association (WTA) teleport certifications. All these
reflect our commitment to ensuring the health, safety and well-being of our
employees while delivering high quality services to our customers.

Investing in People – Our Most Valuable Asset
We invested significantly in 2018 in strengthening our management team.
John Truschinger, who has 35 years’ experience working in IT and supply chain,
and most recently held the position of SVP and CIO for Transocean, joined us in
January as the Chief Information Officer. He has been leading global IT, supply
chain, QHSSE and facilities management, and is driving Speedcast’s digital
transformation. Clive Cuthell joined the team in April as our Chief Financial
Officer. Clive has over 25 years’ experience as a finance leader at large global
corporations listed in Australia and New Zealand. Vanessa Cardonnel, bringing
over 15 years’ experience in corporate finance and investor relations, joined us
as SVP, Corporate Development and Investor Relations in August 2018.
More recently, on 2 January, 2019, Sebastien Lehnherr joined us from
Schlumberger as our new COO. Sebastien has assumed global responsibility
over the operations organisation delivering customer support, network
operations, field engineering, capacity management, service implementation,
as well as programs and projects management. With these four new members
joining our leadership team, we are well equipped to take Speedcast to the
next level, optimising our processes, maximising customer satisfaction and
driving organic growth.

Speedcast employees are guided by a strong corporate
culture and a common set of core values: Customer Focused,
Agile and Responsive, achieving Success Through People &
Safety, and Team Spirit (C.A.S.T.). As we grow, we will continue
to drive a culture enabling the right behaviours for a high
performing and learning organisation. Our values are the
foundation that govern everything we do and have become
a competitive advantage; allowing us to better integrate
acquisitions, to retain and attract talented individuals, and to
connect with our customers.

It is worth highlighting that industry fundamentals are creating
tailwinds for Speedcast. We are seeing growth in data connectivity
needs across all the industries we serve. We are active in multiple
industries and in high-quality, diversified markets that generate
growth opportunities. Satellite operators around the world are
gearing up efforts to upgrade satellite technology that improves
network performance and reduces cost. Speedcast, as the largest
independent buyer of satellite capacity globally, will continue
to leverage its scale, market dynamics and the diversity of its
business to enhance its profitability.

In 2018, we began a series of community activities at our
different offices around the world as part of our Speedcast
Give Back Program, which was launched in December 2017.
Throughout 2018, our employees from around the world
participated in various volunteer activities in the community.
As we continue to grow, we want to make a difference on the
communities around us.

Meanwhile, more and more customers are expressing the need
for managed services. They want a trusted partner to manage
and operate their critical communications and IT infrastructure
on a global basis, meaning a partner that has a global footprint.
No company in our industry is more global or has more people
on the ground in more countries than Speedcast.

Investing in Processes and Products
In 2018, we also invested in centralising operational tasks
in our back office shared service centres. This allows us to
standardise and reduce the cost of supporting our operations
around the world. Alongside the roll out of our shared service
centre model, we have been investing in a common Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) system. The ERP is at the heart of our
IT transformation strategy, and we are therefore bringing it
up to the level we need for a company of our size. We will
continue to invest in our corporate systems in 2019, with the
goal of becoming a more efficient data-driven organisation.
We emphasised at the beginning of 2018 that innovation was
a new priority for Speedcast and I am glad to report that we
have made good progress and seen some key successes in
2018. We have won two awards, one for our SIGMA Gateway
Xtreme and the other for the IoT Platform we acquired as part
of Globecomm’s suite of applications. We also introduced
Speedcast TrueBeamTM, a unique and innovative beamswitching platform that will optimise the way we operate our
global Maritime network.

2019 Outlook and Strategy
Moving into 2019, we expect the groundwork laid in 2018
to contribute to improved 2019 results and overall organic
revenue growth. We are entering 2019 with a stronger and
more diverse market position following the Globecomm
acquisition. We have identified significant cost synergies
to be achieved through the integration of Globecomm and
are very confident of achieving these. Activities to achieve
these cost synergies are well underway. We are following
the proven methodology we have developed to successfully
integrate companies we acquire and achieve cost synergies.
Deleveraging is a key priority in 2019. In order to fund
the Globecomm acquisition, our net leverage temporarily
increased to 3.5 times pro forma Underlying EBITDA. We have
a clear path to deleveraging and are aiming to reduce net
leverage to 3.0 to 3.2 times EBITDA by the end of 2019.

Our vision is to lead Speedcast to become a managed
information service provider, where we are gathering
information, protecting it, delivering it to where our customer
needs it and analysing it. Our aim is to do all of that for more
customers across various industries and thus to be a provider
of managed information to support our customers with their
operational challenges and digital transformation.
The Speedcast C.A.S.T. values are the foundation of our
approach to long-term value creation. We want to accelerate
organic growth in our core market segments through scale
and capabilities advantages, expand our scope of services
with innovation and generate operational efficiencies to
maximise cash flows. In addition, we expect our industry to
continue to consolidate over the next three years.
We take a disciplined approach to capital allocation and this
is key to long-term value creation for our shareholders. This
disciplined approach is all the more required as we have
multiple growth opportunities in this diversified business and
we therefore need to be selective about how we grow.
We will continue to build our platform and bring new and
innovative solutions to our customers, in order to be well
positioned to deliver long-term organic growth and value for
our shareholders.
I would like to thank our customers for their trust in our ability
to deliver the critical communications they need to enable their
operations in the harshest places on earth, and our employees,
the Speedcasters, for their amazing dedication to customer
satisfaction and their passion to fulfil our common Dream.

Pierre-Jean Beylier
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director
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OPERATING AND
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Customer Focused
At Speedcast, we take personal
accountability to respond to
customer requests in a timely
and straightforward manner.
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This Operating and Financial Review forms part of the Directors’ Report
included at page 24 of this Annual Report for the year ended 31 December
2018 of Speedcast International Limited (henceforth “SIL” or “the Company”),
and its controlled entities (the “Group” or “Speedcast”).

Year in review
2018
USD‘000

2017
restated
USD‘000

% var.

623,095

514,173

21%

Profit for the year before tax

4,764

7,748

(39)%

Profit for the year after tax attributable
to the owners of the Company

1,847

6,001

(69)%

Statutory Financial Performance
USD’000
Revenue

Overview

Group
revenues grew

Underlying EBITDA
margin reached

to USD 623.1M

in 2018

21%

21.2%

Revenue grew 21% to USD 623.1 million, including USD 7.5m contribution from
two acquisitions completed in 2018 and the full year impact of acquisitions
completed in 2017.
In 2018, Speedcast achieved strong organic growth across three of its divisions
(Maritime, Government, and Enterprise and Emerging Markets (EEM)), however
Energy division revenue continued to decline due to ongoing delays in the
offshore Energy market recovery. Despite a challenging year the Company
had several significant achievements, including signing the two biggest
customer contracts in company history, completing the strategic Globecomm
acquisition (at an attractive valuation and doubling revenue in the high
growth Government division), and establishing a back office shared service
centre model including transitioning to a common ERP system.
Maritime revenue grew 10% to USD 219.7 million. This growth was driven
primarily by VSAT activations in Commercial Shipping and bandwidth growth
and customer wins in the Cruise business.
Energy revenue was down 14% to USD 158.3 million due to continued delays
in the recovery of the offshore Energy sector. However, second half 2018
revenues were 8% higher than first half 2018 revenues.

Annual Report 2018
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EEM revenue grew 27% to USD 147.9 million. This strong
growth was driven by the first phase of the NBN contract in
Australia as well as growth in wholesale voice activity.
Government revenue was USD 97.3 million in 2018. On a pro
forma basis1 this represents a 16% increase, driven primarily
by growth in intelligence, surveillance and reconnaissance
services and increased U.S. defence spending.
Divisional performances are discussed in more detail on
pages 12 to 16.

Statutory profit for the year after tax attributable to
owners of the Company decreased by 69% to USD 1.9 million.
The statutory results include costs which are non-recurring
in nature, such as acquisition-related costs, integration costs,
accelerated amortisation of loan establishment costs and
foreign exchange gains on forward contracts undertaken in
relation to acquisition funding. The financial performance
of the Group excluding these non-recurring factors has also
been presented in this report and is identified as being the
“underlying” result.

Statutory to underlying reconciliations
Underlying financial results are presented to provide a better understanding of Speedcast’s financial performance and are
intended to exclude items which are non-recurring in nature, such as acquisition-related transaction costs, integration costs
and restructuring costs.
Non-IFRS measures such as Underlying EBITDA and Underlying NPATA have also been presented to provide a better
understanding of Speedcast’s financial performance. EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation and is used to measure the underlying performance of the Group, excluding non-cash items such as depreciation
and amortisation. NPATA is defined as net profit after tax but prior to the amortisation of intangibles, net of tax effect.
2018
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

623,095

514,173

Profit for the year after tax

1,928

5,992

Acquisition related costs

4,354

9,212

Integration costs

4,109

4,044

Restructuring costs

2,202

6,307

–

550

(3,031)

–

Foreign exchange loss

2,673

73

Accelerated amortisation of loan establishment costs – finance costs

8,619

–

Interest expense on deferred consideration – finance costs

1,170

134

446

650

(5,151)

(2,440)

Revenue

Fair value loss on deferred consideration
Gain on extinguishment of interest rate hedges

Unwinding of fair value adjustments – finance costs
Tax effect of non-recurring costs on underlying results
Underlying NPAT

17,319

24,522

Add back: Amortisation (net of tax)

30,802

21,486

Underlying NPATA

48,121

46,008

1 UltiSat was acquired on 1 November 2017. Pro forma compares Government division revenue in 2018 to UltiSat revenue for the full twelve months in 2017.
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2018

Underlying EBITDA

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

% var.

132,032

123,332

7%

Depreciation

(37,513)

(42,516)

(12)%

Amortisation

(40,003)

(28,610)

40%

Underlying EBIT

54,516

52,206

4%

Underlying finance costs, net

(29,210)

(23,488)

24%

(7,987)

(4,196)

90%

Underlying income tax expense
Underlying NPAT

17,319

24,522

(29)%

Add back: Amortisation (net of tax)

30,802

21,486

43%

Underlying NPATA

48,121

46,008

5%

Underlying EBITDA grew 7% to USD 132.0 million. Underlying
EBITDA margin reduced from 24.0% to 21.2% due to dilution
from the UltiSat acquisition, which closed in November 2017,
phase 1 of the NBN contract in the EEM division, and the mixeffect of reduced earnings in the Energy division.
Underlying NPATA grew 5% to USD 48.1 million.

Operating cash flow
Operating cash flows of USD 68.1 million were 14% lower
than the prior year, due to higher finance cost payments and
higher tax payments, partially offset by improved underlying
EBITDA and result.
The Group maintained a strong focus on working capital
management resulting in 91% underlying cash conversion.
Underlying cash conversion is calculated by dividing
Underlying EBITDA by cash from operations excluding the
cash impact of non-recurring integration and restructuring
costs of USD 6.3 million.
In aggregate the Group achieved a neutral working capital
position at year end, reflecting a temporary net working
capital investment in Phase 1 of the NBN project offset by
improved working capital management across the rest of the
Group.

Capital expenditure
Capital expenditure of USD 60.3 million was USD 31.2
million higher than the prior year, reflecting investment in
growth projects across the divisions, in corporate platform
improvements for the Group (primarily IT systems), and
ongoing maintenance capital expenditure (c.1.5% of
revenue). In addition, items previously classified as expenses
are now classified as capital expenditure as a result of AASB
15 accounting changes (USD 6.0 million).

Balance sheet and debt management
Net debt as at 31 December 2018, comprising interest-bearing
liabilities net of the fair value of interest rate swaps and cash
at bank and on deposit (other than cash used as collateral),
was USD 581.9 million, up from USD 389.0 million as at 31
December 2017. The increase was primarily driven by the
additional debt incurred in connection with the Globecomm
acquisition as well as the increase in capital expenditure
and the USD 20.0 million earn-out payment for the UltiSat
acquisition paid in April 2018. The pro forma net leverage of
the Group was 3.5x Underlying EBITDA.
In May 2018, Speedcast refinanced its pre-existing bank loans,
which included a USD 385.0 million Senior Secured Bank loan
and a USD 60 million Accordion Facility with the proceeds of
a new USD 425.0 million, 7 year, Senior Secured Credit Facility
in the U.S. Institutional Term Loan B market. In addition, on
the same date, the Group entered into a new USD 100.0
million, 5 year, Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility. The
new facilities diversify Speedcast’s funding sources, extend
its debt maturity profile and improve the Group’s operational
flexibility.
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In December 2018 the Group incurred an incremental USD 175
million under the Senior Secured Credit Facility. The proceeds
of the incremental debt were used to fund the acquisition of
Globecomm and the related transaction fees and expenses,
and to partially repay the Senior Secured Revolving Credit
Facility.
Interest payable on the new term loan facility is subject to
a floating margin component. This exposes the Group to
interest rate risk. To hedge this risk, the Group has entered
into floating to fixed interest rate swap contracts over a
notional amount equal to approximately 70% of the Senior
Secured Credit Facility, effectively fixing the interest rate for
this portion of the loan. Refer to note 3 to the Financial Report
for further detail.
Speedcast’s liquidity position was strong with cash interest
cover2 in 2018 of 4.3x.
Speedcast established and maintained credit ratings during
the year. Standard and Poor’s rating at the end of the period
and at the date of this report is BB- (stable outlook) and
Moody’s Investor Services’ rating at the end of the period and
at the date of this report is Ba3 (negative outlook).

Dividends
Speedcast’s dividend policy considers current earnings and
cash flows, future cash flow requirements and targeted net
leverage metrics.
In line with the dividend policy, the Board has declared an
unfranked final dividend of AUD 4.8 cents per share. This
takes the full-year dividend to AUD 7.2 cents per share, in line
with the prior year. The final dividend will be paid on 23 May
2019 to shareholders on the Company’s register on 8 March
2019, the record date for the final dividend.
The Company has stated that deleveraging is a priority in
2019. In addition, the Board has indicated that it will review
the decision to declare future dividends with this priority in
mind.

Divisions
Speedcast operates across four key business verticals:
Maritime, Energy, Enterprise & Emerging Markets (EEM) and
Government.

Maritime
Our business
Speedcast provides remote and secure communications
services primarily to Commercial Shipping, Cruise and Ferry
customers as part of its Maritime division. It also serves some
yachting customers.
Commercial Shipping is a core part of our Maritime business.
Speedcast uses a combination of VSAT, L-band, land-based
4G/LTE networks to deliver communications across oceans
and along the most rugged coastlines in the world. Our
Maritime division has been optimising business operations
and minimising in-port maintenance time with better
monitoring and reporting through IoT and M2M technologies.
Speedcast serves about 50% of the ocean-going Cruise ships
globally, ranging from large ocean Cruise ships to adventure
Cruise ships and also caters for river Cruise ships. The renewal
of our contract with Carnival Cruise Line, the world’s largest
leisure travel company, confirms our status as the preferred
partner in the industry.

2018 review
USDm

2018

2017

% var.

Revenue

219.7

200.2

9.7%

Services

194.3

181.1

7.3%

25.4

19.1

33.0%

Equipment & Installation

Speedcast’s Maritime division achieved 10% revenue growth
in 2018. Excluding USD 1.5 million of Maritime revenue
contribution from Globecomm, which was acquired in
December 2018, the Maritime division achieved organic
revenue growth of approximately 9% in 2018.
The Commercial Shipping market continues to see migration
from narrowband to broadband connectivity, which is the
main driver of revenue growth in this sub-segment. Speedcast

2 Cash interest cover is calculated by dividing Underlying EBITDA by net cash interest paid in the period.
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added a net 763 VSAT vessels in 2018 and ended the year with
a total of 2,352 VSAT vessels, or 3,036 VSAT vessels including
Globecomm. In addition, the number of L-band terminals
increased to 10,969, or 13,308 including Globecomm.
Speedcast has renewed contracts with the top two global
Cruise fleets since 2017 and, in 2018, won contracts on 36
new Cruise ships and Ferries. The main drivers of revenue
growth in the Cruise sub-segment are growth in number of
ships and passengers, rapid increases in onboard bandwidth
demands and Speedcast’s ability to win new customers. There
is currently a significant shift occurring in the Cruise market
towards delivering passengers a connectivity experience
more similar to what they experience at home. In 2018 the
highest throughput Speedcast delivered to a single ship was
approximately 3.174 Gbps, although for a short period of time
(ship inauguration), up from 520 Mbps in 2017.
Equipment and installation revenue increased significantly
by 33% in 2018, which also underpins service revenue growth
into 2019.

Challenges
The Commercial Shipping market may be impacted by
macroeconomic factors that could slow down the transition of
vessels from narrowband to broadband. In addition, logistical
and resourcing issues that sometimes arise in connection
with the transitioning of vessels from narrowband to VSAT
may slow Speedcast’s growth rate in Commercial Shipping.
The Cruise market is relatively concentrated and Speedcast’s
Cruise contracts are among the largest in the Group’s portfolio,
although each represents less than 10% of total Group revenue.
To mitigate this concentration risk, Speedcast works to develop
and nurture long-standing partnerships with its customers,
built on a long track record of successful delivery and focus on
customer needs.

broadband partially offset by some known revenue churn
in 2019 from the discontinuation of services provided to
a satellite operator. The Company had a backlog of 520
vessels at December 2018 and will continue to activate this
backlog while also adding to it by developing its pipeline of
opportunities for VSAT migration. Speedcast is also assessing
opportunities for VSAT migration within Globecomm’s
contracted narrowband vessels.
In Cruise and Ferry, medium term organic growth prospects
are promising due to bandwidth growth and new customer
wins. 28 of the 36 Cruise ships and Ferries won in 2018 have
been activated and will drive revenue growth in 2019. In
addition, Speedcast renewed its largest VSAT contract with
Carnival Corporation at the end of 2018 and expects revenue
and EBITDA growth from this contract over the three year
term of the renewed contract.
To support further organic growth, Speedcast continues to
build upon its robust suite of value-added services (VAS). These
include extended capabilities of our SIGMA gateway, 4G/LTE
solutions, cybersecurity, remote security, entertainment,
training and remote video streaming/CCTV. These have the
potential to increase revenue and profitability of Speedcast’s
Maritime business in the future. The focus on VAS in the
Maritime ecosystem provides cost-effective solutions for
ever-increasing customer needs that differentiate Speedcast
from other Maritime service integrators, while enhancing the
on-board experience.
In addition to Commercial Shipping and Cruise & Ferry,
Speedcast is developing Yachting, which is very small today
but has promising growth prospects.

Outlook
Speedcast expects to continue to generate organic revenue
growth in its Maritime division.
In Commercial Shipping, organic growth will be driven by
continued migration of vessels from narrowband to VSAT
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Energy
Our business
Speedcast currently serves the top players in all segments
of the Energy industry: drilling, engineering services, and
production. Though the recovery in the Energy market has
been delayed, Energy companies are still actively assessing
their IT and network assets in an effort to streamline
operations and improve operational efficiencies. This has
led to the relocation of assets and a focus on improving
operational performance and returns on investment.
Whether onshore or offshore, a readily available network
is critical to operations and safety. To support the need for
constant connectivity, Speedcast provides the expertise,
infrastructure and network capacity needed to keep their vital
applications running and their crews connected.

2018 review
USDm

2018

2017

% var.

Revenue

158.3

183.2

(13.6)%

Services

148.2

174.9

(15.3)%

10.1

8.3

21.5%

Equipment & Installation

2018 was another challenging year for Speedcast’s Energy
division, with revenue declining 14% from 2017. This
decrease was largely the a result of ongoing deepwater rig
demobilisation (stacking) in the latter part of 2017 and into
2018 and some limited customer churn in the first half of
2018. The second half of 2018 saw more positive momentum,
with revenue increasing 8% over the first half. This was the
result of solid onshore activity, continued transitioning of
Noble Drilling’s global fleet, from a competitor to Speedcast,
and growth in systems integration revenue. Revenue
activations exceeded churn in the second half of 2018 and
the equipment sales growth achieved supports future service
revenue growth.

Challenges
Uncertainties in the oil and gas industry may continue to
impact our Energy division. The fundamentals of the oil and
gas industry were challenging in 2018, particularly as it relates
to the deep water offshore segment where Speedcast has a
strong market leading position. Although oil prices increased
in 2017 and the first three quarters of 2018 from their 2016
lows, the Energy environment continues to be uncertain.
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Generally, an extended period of lower oil prices decreases
exploration and investment activity. This reduces the
utilisation of rigs and overall activity levels in the global oil
and gas sector that our Energy division serves. The average
price of Brent crude, a key indicator of activity for the oil and
gas industry, increased during most of 2018, but then fell in
late 2018, before increasing again in early 2019. Following
this volatility, although the offshore drilling contracting
environment remains challenged, drilling contractors appear
cautiously optimistic about a gradual demand recovery.

Outlook
Speedcast expects revenue growth in 2019, driven mainly by
specific tailwinds such as the full year impact of the Noble
Drilling rig fleet that was partially transitioned in 2018,
additional systems integration revenue from some large new
projects and continuous growth with a major engineering
services firm, primarily related to onshore activity.
Speedcast is not forecasting any significant recovery in
deep water offshore activity in 2019 but does expect the
Energy market recovery will accelerate in 2020. This is in
line with commentary from most major drilling contractors
and oil producers. In the meantime, Speedcast maintains a
very strong competitive position in deepwater drilling rigs
with 64% of market share. Accordingly, Speedcast is well
positioned to benefit from a future recovery in Energy activity
levels.
In addition, Speedcast is developing strategies to grow its
share of shallow water rigs from a current low base whilst also
expanding the scope of services that it provides to customers
in the Energy division to include value added services and
products such as Crew Wi-Fi, LTE connectivity, cybersecurity,
IoT, entertainment, Systems Integration services and IT
outsourcing services.

Enterprise & Emerging Markets (EEM)
Our business
Speedcast’s EEM division is very diverse and addresses
multiple markets, including cellular and telecom operators,
humanitarian organisations, utilities, mining and media.
We have a strong position in the Pacific, South East Asia,
South America, and the Sub-Sahara region. The Globecomm
acquisition adds strength in the United States.
Our extensive satellite network is designed to provide
connectivity for telecom operators, enterprises and
organisations in remote areas. For example, Speedcast
technology enables cellular operators to expand their 3G

and 4G services beyond urban areas and provides backup
protection to primary terrestrial backhaul circuits in the event
of cable cuts or natural disaster. In remote regions satellite
solutions are the best way to reach unserved populations and
enable people to access the internet and thus bridging the
digital divide. Speedcast’s experienced engineering teams
carry out network design, installation, maintenance, network
operations, satellite capacity procurement and integration
into the carriers’ backbone.
For humanitarian organisations and disaster response
teams, Speedcast offers mobile, flexible and ready to deploy
communications solutions to be used in the harshest
environments at the most unexpected times.
Speedcast’s media solutions help broadcasters and media
companies unlock new opportunities and expand offerings,
with managed services and system integration, as consumer
demand for IP video grows and cloud-based content delivery
becomes ubiquitous. Speedcast Media Network can deliver
content from anywhere to everywhere.

2018 review
USDm

2018

2017

% var.

Revenue

147.9

116.6

26.8%

Services

86.2

88.5

(2.5)%

Wholesale Voice

24.0

20.3

18.0%

Equipment & Installation

37.7

7.9

378.5%

Outlook
The NBN project in Australia will transition into Phase 2 in
2019, which is expected to result in a decline in equipment
and installation revenue compared to 2018. Excluding the
impact of NBN, Speedcast expects to deliver organic service
revenue growth in 2019 from the implementation of some
new projects at the end of 2018 and the backlog of projects
for implementation in 2019. Cellular backhaul and rural
connectivity solutions remain key growth areas in 2019,
particularly in Latin America and South East Asia.
We continue to see strong demand for connectivity in
emerging markets, as telecom operators aim to expand their
mobile networks in order to provide services to people and
business that are not connected today or that are not satisfied
with their current communications options.
In addition, the Globecomm acquisition adds scale and
capabilities to our media business, which is expected to drive
growth in this sector.
The Globecomm acquisition also brings very interesting
IoT capabilities which will benefit the EEM division. As at
December 2018, Globecomm connected 16,000 devices (up
from 200 devices at the end of 2017). The Company views
IoT as a significant growth opportunity as Globecomm’s
capabilities are fully integrated into the Speedcast Group and
revenue synergy opportunities are realised in EEM and across
other divisions.

Government
EEM achieved strong organic growth of 25% in 2018 (adjusting
for USD 2.6 million of revenue contribution from Globecomm
and In Aria!). This growth was driven by growth in Wholesale
Voice and the start of Phase 1 of the NBN project in Australia,
which is reflected in the significant growth in equipment and
installation revenue. Services revenue declined in 2018 as a
result of some customer churn in late 2017 and in 2018. This
was primarily due to technology displacement with increased
penetration of fibre across the Pacific region as well as the
loss of a customer in Indonesia and in aviation.

Challenges
The EEM division is highly fragmented and serves customers
all over the world, including in some developing markets
where the customer and political risks are higher.
The EEM division has the greatest level of competition
of Speedcast’s divisions, the lowest barriers to entry and
greatest displacement risk. This is due to the fact that the
division involves a greater proportion of contracts which
provide simple and less critical fixed connectivity solutions
(rather than more complex mobility network solutions) with
more limited technical support needs.

Our business
Speedcast’s Government division is a recognised leader
in secure, reliable, end-to-end managed communications,
airborne Intelligence Surveillance and Reconnaissance
(ISR)/Communications-On-The-Move (COTM) solutions, and
professional services for mission-critical applications.
The division delivers high-value solutions to end users in
some of the most remote and harsh locations in over 135
countries on 7 continents around the globe. With customer
networks that vary from a few sites to hundreds of locations,
its technical expertise and technology-agnostic approach
ensures that customers get best-fit/best-value solutions.
Government division customers include U.S. government
agencies, defence contractors and Intergovernmental
Organisations (IGOs).
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2018 review
2018

20171

% var.

Revenue

97.3

83.9

16.0%

Services

90.8

80.2

13.2%

6.5

3.7

75.7%

USDm

Equipment & Installation

Government delivered strong revenue growth of 16% in 2018.
Excluding the USD 3.6 million contribution of Globecomm,
which was acquired in December 2018, the division generated
healthy organic growth of 12%.
According to the Office of the Under Secretary of the
Department of Defence (Comptroller), U.S. defence spending
increased 10% in 2018 and was a driver of growth in this
division. In addition, airborne ISR and COTM is an area in
which Speedcast’s Government division has built unique
expertise, which was a significant contributor to the organic
growth of the division, with revenue growing by 34% in 2018.
The strong growth in equipment and installation revenue is
also expected to underpin future network and professional
service revenue growth.

Outlook for the group
Speedcast is confident in its ability to take advantage of its
market leading position and unique scale and capabilities to
deliver organic growth.
Industry fundamentals are creating several tailwinds
for Speedcast, in particular a significant growth in data
connectivity needs across our divisions. Capacity supply
is strong and our customers are demanding more fully
managed services with service partners who can deliver on
a global basis. There is no company in the managed network
and information services space that is more global and has
more people on the ground than Speedcast.
Our increasingly diversified business provides numerous
growth opportunities which are expected to create long term
value for shareholders.
Specifically in 2019, Speedcast is well placed to deliver
moderate organic revenue growth. This outlook reflects:
–

A positive outlook for Maritime with strong backlog and
pipeline in Commercial Shipping and in Cruise as we
increase market share and customers’ connectivity needs
continue to grow

–

Although the timing of the Energy market recovery is
uncertain, Speedcast’s market share and strong customer
base position it well to benefit from the anticipated
market recovery

–

A reduction in revenue in EEM from the transition into
Phase 2 of the NBN contract is expected to be partially
offset by organic growth in the rest of the division

–

Government revenue is expected to continue to grow
strongly in 2019 albeit at a slightly lower rate than in
2018. With the scale that was added to this division with
the acquisition of Globecomm, Speedcast expects to be in
a stronger position to win contracts across the combined
customer base in the medium term

Challenges
U.S. government contracts are funded on 12 month cycles,
which can cause uncertainty. Changing budget priorities
may impact ongoing and new contracts. The potential of U.S.
government shutdowns may impact near-term task order
awards and/or contract closure cycles. Recent announcements
by the Trump administration related to troop withdrawals
from certain areas of military operations may impact existing
programs and pipeline development opportunities.

Outlook
Speedcast expects the Government division to continue
growing organically in 2019 and beyond in line with the U.S
government spending trends and the growing investment
in ISR services. We are entering 2019 with a stronger market
position following the Globecomm acquisition, which
closed in December and nearly doubles the revenue of the
Government division. Revenue synergies from the acquisition
are expected to contribute to growth over the next three
years through both cross-selling opportunities and increased
win rates.

The outlook for each Division is discussed in more detail on
pages 12 to 16.

The Government division had a strong backlog of USD 28
million at December 2018 and we are also working on a more
aggressive push into global government as NATO countries
are expected to increase their defence budgets.

1 Includes revenue for the full twelve months of UltiSat, which was acquired in November 2017.
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Risks
The Group takes a proactive approach to risk management.
The Board is responsible for ensuring that business risks
are identified quickly and that appropriate risk mitigation
steps are taken in a proactive and timely manner. The Board
assesses the risks with the Group’s overall strategic objectives
and activities in mind. Current key risks identified for the
Group are:

Speedcast financial targets are
compromised by ongoing global
reduction in bandwidth costs

Geo-political risks
As a consequence of the geographic areas that Speedcast
operates in, the Group is exposed to geo-political and
strategic risks. These risks have increased as the Group has
grown larger and moved into new markets. The risks include
disruption as a result of war, civil unrest, security issues and
government intervention. These risks exist predominantly
in the Middle East, Russia and certain parts of Latin America,
Africa and Asia.

Loss of, or inability to attract, key
personnel

Global bandwidth costs continue to decline. This is caused
by bandwidth oversupply, technological innovation and
increased competition. These reductions may impact
Speedcast’s future financial performance.

Speedcast’s success depends to a significant extent on its
key personnel. There is significant competition for strong
candidates with experience in the satellite services industry,
and this competition is expected to increase. The loss of key
personnel or the inability to recruit personnel may adversely
affect Speedcast’s future financial performance.

Macro-Economic Risks

Risks relating to acquisitions

Changes in macroeconomic conditions can affect Speedcast’s
business. As an example, Speedcast’s FY18 results have been
adversely affected by ongoing weakness in global Energy
markets. Other future risks include potential reductions in
government spending and reduced international trade, inter
alia.

Speedcast has historically experienced rapid growth through
acquisition. This growth has placed, and may continue to place,
significant demands on management, information reporting
resources, and financial and internal controls and systems. In
addition, Speedcast’s ongoing performance depends on the
effective and timely integration of acquisitions.

Consolidation of the satellite service
Foreign exchange rates
industry could change the competitive Speedcast’s financial reports are presented in United States
dollars. However, a substantial proportion of Speedcast’s
landscape
The satellite service industry is undergoing a period of
consolidation. Some of Speedcast’s distributors have been
acquired by competitors and Speedcast anticipates that other
distributors of its services may be acquired by competitors in
the future.

Satellite service providers face
competition from a range of new
communication services and new
technologies

sales revenue, expenditures and cash flows are generated
in various other currencies, including Euros. Further, as
Speedcast expands its operations it is expected that it will be
exposed to additional currencies. Any adverse exchange rate
fluctuations or volatility in the currencies in which Speedcast
generates its revenues and cash flows, and incurs its costs,
would have an adverse effect on Speedcast’s future financial
performance and position.

Satellite communication competes with a number of
different methods of transmission, including fibre-optic,
Wi-Fi, and WiMax. As competing networks expand, satellite
communication’s competitive advantage in providing
connectivity to users outside established networks is reduced.
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AND COMMUNITY

Agile & Responsive
Driven by an internal passion
for excellence, we bring positive
energy to every situation.
We quickly recover from
setbacks with renewed energy
and creatively turn problems
into opportunities.
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People
At Speedcast we believe that the people behind the technology are equally
important as the technology behind the people. Although Speedcast has the
infrastructure and technological capabilities to connect people anywhere in
the world, it is the depth of experience, customer focus and passion of our
people that have led to the success we have achieved to date.

Over

Culture
With over 1,500 employees around
the world, it is our C.A.S.T. values
that keep us united with a common
culture.

1,500
employees around
the world

Customer Focus

At Speedcast, we take personal
accountability to respond to
customer requests in a timely and
straightforward manner.

Agile and
Responsive

Driven by a passion for excellence,
we bring positive energy to every
situation. We quickly recover
from setbacks and creatively turn
problems into opportunities.

We make the health, safety and

Success Through well-being of our employees and
People and Safety customers our top priority.

Team Spirit

We work together to pursue our
goals and objectives, support
each other and focus on the right
outcome.

To reinforce our values across the globe, we frequently conduct culture
trainings and workshops that give our employees the opportunity to share
how they bring the C.A.S.T values to life in their daily work activities.
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It is also important for us to foster our values in newly acquired companies. As part of our
integration strategy we organise culture workshops to teach our values to new Speedcast
employees. By engaging our new team members, we are able to retain the best talent and
gather feedback as a way to prioritise future culture initiatives.
Each year, we recognise team members for their dedication and contribution to the
company with the C.A.S.T. values and CEO awards for Top Performers in Sales and NonSales roles.
To track our progress, we conduct a company-wide culture survey every two years. The
data helps us better understand our cultural landscape and how we have progressed. The
results provide the leadership team with insights into what is important to our employees
and give our employees a forum for open feedback. The survey results are especially
valuable after the integration of new company as it allows us to know where there may
be culture gaps or misalignment.

Diversity
Speedcast is a people-focused business with employees in over 40 countries. We believe
that a team with diverse backgrounds and experiences is an asset.
Speedcast is an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) employer and does not discriminate
against any job applicant because of race, colour, religion, national origin, gender, sexual
orientation, physical or mental disability, or age.

Speedcast is truly a Global Company
with employees in

5

11

countries
in Americas

25

20

Speedcast International Limited

countries
in EMEA

countries
in APAC

As part of our standard hiring process we look at various
criteria, including academic performance, recommendations
from former employers and job-related awards or training.
In order to ensure objectivity and fairness in an employee
selection process, we form a diverse hiring panel to
conduct the interviews. Whenever possible, we expand our
recruitment over a broader geographic area by opening a
particular position to more than one country. By expanding
the geographic scope, we are able to reach a larger pool of
diverse candidates.
To improve diversity, we have often provided flexibility in a
position’s work schedule and location in order to attract a
broader pool of diverse candidates. We have created a private
space in our local offices for women coming back to work
after maternity leave or daily prayers.
We have an annual performance management program
which helps maintain fairness in performance evaluations and
promotion decisions. Speedcast is truly a Global Company
with employees in 11 countries in APAC, 25 countries in EMEA
and in 5 countries in the Americas.

Diversity and Inclusion Objective
Speedcast’s objectives are to:
•

increase female representation at senior leadership levels
– Board of Directors and Senior Executive

•

expand our participation in networking and development
programs that focus on traditionally under-represented
groups in the industries we serve

•

increase the number of females and under-represented
hires in proportion to the overall employee base.

People Development
We are committed to people training and development. We
believe that training and talent development go hand-inhand with our success and long-term growth. A capable and
effective workforce can be relied upon to meet customer
needs and our strategic objectives.
We provide job-specific and career development training
opportunities that include products, technical skills, customer
service, team work, culture and leadership. We also focus on
the potential and capability of our future leaders so that they
have the capabilities and tools required for success. Speedcast
supports providing international mobility assignments as a
strategy to bring diverse sets of skills and experiences to our
workplace and continue to develop our employee base.
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Safety
Health and Safety
At Speedcast, we make the health, safety and well-being
of our employees and customers our top priority. Under
standardised safety calculation created by Occupational
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), we are proud to
report that we achieved a Total Recordable Incident Rate
of 0.15 in 2018, which is well below industry average for a
company of Speedcast’s size.
Speedcast provides and maintains safe and environmentally
responsible systems of work where hazards and associated
risks are identified and controlled. We promote responsible
leadership that engages employees in the consultation of
all matters pertaining to health, safety, security, and the
environment (HSSE).
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In September 2018, Speedcast achieved three global
certifications: Occupational Health and Safety Management
(OHSAS 18001), ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management, and
ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management. OHSAS
18001 ensures health, safety and well-being of employees,
contractors and the public. ISO 9001 shows our ongoing
commitment to quality improvement, which in turn
drives increased customer satisfaction and improved cost
effectiveness. Our ISO 14001 program manages, controls and
improves our environmental operational impact.

ISO
14001

Community
Give Back Program
Speedcast’s Give Back Program, launched in December
2017, gives our employees the chance to get involved with
local communities and contribute to selected charitable
organisations in the places we work.
The Helping Hands campaign was the first initiative we set
up to help our Houston colleagues who were impacted by
Hurricane Harvey. A total of USD 29,000 was raised. In 2018, we
ran global calendar of Give Back Program initiatives around
the world. One highlight was the effort of our Aberdeen team,
who organised a series of fundraising events throughout the

year, including charity race night, Aberdeen Great Run 10km,
raffle and bake sale to benefit the Aberdeen Royal Infirmary
– Friend of New-Natal. Another campaign was a fundraiser
for National Multiple Sclerosis Society in Houston, where
the team organised a Cook-off, bike ride and bake sale to
fund research and help people with multiple sclerosis live
better lives.
Other meaningful fundraisers include Marathons, Toys for Tots
in Houston, Back to School stationary donations in Peru, UK
National Three Peaks Challenge in Aberdeen, Spartan race in
Singapore, blood donation drive in Kuala Lumper and food
preparation at Food Angel, a food rescue charity in Hong Kong.
By giving back, we show that Speedcast is more than just a
company, but a group of individuals who come together to
support amazing causes and help those in need.
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Success Through
People & Safety
Operating on the core belief
that it’s the people behind the
technology that makes the
difference, we make the health,
safety and well-being of our
employees and customers our
top priority.
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Information on Directors

John Angus Mackay, AM
Director, Chairman

Term:

BA, BEc, Hon Phd (UC)

Director since 14 July 2014*

Skills and experience: John has over 15 years of experience as a Chairman
and Director of major companies across the communications, utilities, health,
construction and education sectors. Previously, John held the role of Chairman
of TransACT Communications, a regional integrated telecommunications
and subscription TV operator. He was the Chairman and CEO of ACTEW
Corporation and CEO, Chairman and founder of its joint venture with AGL. He
was Chancellor of the University of Canberra and Chairman of the Strategic
Advisory Board of the National Arboretum Canberra.

Directorships of listed entities (last three years), other directorship/
offices (current and recent):
• Chairman of CommsChoice Group Ltd (ASX: CCG)
• Director of Energy Action Ltd (ASX: EAX)
Special Responsibilities:
•
•

Chair of Board
Audit, Business Risk and Compliance Committee

* John was initially appointed as a director of Speedcast Acquisitions Ltd (SAL) in Oct 2013.
Following the IPO, Speedcast undertook a capital reconstruction and as a result acquired all of the
issued capital of SAL.
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Grant Scott Ferguson
Director

Term:

BSc (Hons) (ABS),
CA, CPA

Director since
14 July 2014*

Skills and experience: Grant has held
senior roles in the telecommunications
industry for over 20 years, including as
CEO of Astro Overseas Ltd, and as CFO
of Astro All Asia Network Plc, one of
Asia’s leading integrated multimedia
groups. Previously, Grant was a Managing
Director, Telecommunications, Media
and Technology at sovereign wealth fund
Temasek Holdings, CFO of Total Access
Communications in Thailand and Metro
Pacific in the Philippines, and treasurer for
the First Pacific Group in Hong Kong after
starting his career with Price Waterhouse.
Between 2014 and 2017 Grant served on
the board of Italian football club Inter
Milan. He currently serves as an advisor to
and Non-Executive Director of a number
of businesses across Asia.
Directorships of listed entities (last
three years), other directorship/
offices (current and recent):
•
•
•
•

Director of Fortrec Holdings Pte Ltd
Director of SRG Asia Pacific Sdn Bhd
Director of Disruptive Media Pte Ltd
Director of The Alice Smith School,
Kuala Lumpur

Special Responsibilities:
• Chair of Audit, Business Risk and
Compliance Committee
• Remuneration and Nominations
Committee
* Grant was initially appointed as a director of
Speedcast Acquisitions Ltd (SAL) in Oct 2012.
Following the IPO, Speedcast undertook a
capital reconstruction and as a result acquired
all of the issued capital of SAL.
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Peter Edward Jackson
Director

Michael Martin Malone

Term:

Director

Term:

Director since
14 July 2014*

BSc,
GradDipEd (WA)

Director since
14 July 2014*

Skills and experience: Peter has more
than 40 years of experience in the satellite
and telecommunications sectors. He
served as the CEO at AsiaSat from 1993
– 2010 and as its Executive Chairman
from 2010-2011. He was Non-Executive
Director of AsiaSat until 2018. Prior to
joining AsiaSat, Peter spent 20 years
with Cable and Wireless. He served as a
Director and Chairman at Daum, a South
Korean Internet provider.
Directorships of listed entities (last
three years), other directorship/
offices (current and recent):
• Director of We Solutions Ltd (HKSE:
860)
• Director of Asia Satellite
Telecommunications Holdings Ltd
(HKSE: 1135)
• Director of LeoLabs, Inc.
• Director of WeLab Holdings Ltd
Special Responsibilities:
• Chair of Remuneration and
Nominations Committee
* Peter was initially appointed as a director of
Speedcast Acquisitions Ltd (SAL) in Oct 2012.
Following the IPO, Speedcast undertook a
capital reconstruction and as a result acquired
all of the issued capital of SAL.

Skills and experience: Michael is the
founder and former CEO of ASX-listed
internet provider iiNet, a position he
held from 1999 to 2013. He served as
the President of the Western Australian
Internet Association from 1996 to 2002.
Michael is also the former Deputy
Chairman of Autism West. He was a winner
of the Western Australian Information
Technology and Telecommunications
awards lifetime achievement award
in 2005, and in 2006 was awarded the
Business News Award for the most
outstanding business leader in Western
Australia under 40 and the Young Leader
of the Year award for the JML Australia
Human Capital Leadership Awards.
Directorships of listed entities (last
three years), other directorship/
offices (current and recent):
• Chairman of Sky and Space Global
Ltd (ASX: SAS)
• Director of Seven West Media Ltd
(ASX: SWM)
• Director of Superloop Ltd (ASX: SLC)
• Director of NBN Corporation Ltd
Special Responsibilities:
• Audit, Business Risk and Compliance
Committee
• Remuneration and Nominations
Committee
* Michael was initially appointed as a director of
Speedcast Acquisitions Ltd (SAL) in May 2014.
Following the IPO, Speedcast undertook a
capital reconstruction and as a result acquired
all of the issued capital of SAL.

Michael Stuart Berk
Term:

Director

Director from
A.B. (Harvard),
14 July 2014 to
JD (Harvard Law
17 May 2018*
School), MBA
(Harvard Business
School)

Caroline Van Scheltinga

Pierre-Jean (‘PJ’)
Joseph Andre Beylier

Director

Term:

Director

Term:

LLM (Leiden
University),
MBA (Insead)

Director since
5 April 2018

PGE (EM Lyon),
MBA (USC)

Director since
14 July 2014*

Skills and experience: Caroline has
over 23 years of investment banking
experience at global firms including
Jefferies & Company, Lehman Brothers
and Credit Suisse in New York.
Caroline is currently the Chairman and
CEO at Waterloo Investment Holdings, a
BSX-listed holding company operating
across a number of sectors with assets
in the Caribbean and Latin America.
Directorships of listed entities (last
three years), other directorship/
offices (current and recent):
• Chairman & CEO of Waterloo Investment
Holdings Ltd (BSX: WIHL.BH)

Skills and experience: PJ joined
Speedcast in 2000 as Head of Sales
and Marketing. He was appointed
Chief Executive Officer of Speedcast in
2004. PJ has been instrumental to the
success of Speedcast, having managed
the transition to its current technology
platform and guided the development
of Speedcast’s strategic focus. He
has over 20 years of experience in
international sales and marketing
across Black and Decker in France, and
at Rhodia, a French manufacturer of
specialised industrial chemicals where
he held a number of roles including
export sales manager for one of the
divisions, responsible for Southern and
Eastern Europe, Middle East and Africa,
and then managed key e-business
projects in the Group.

Skills and experience: Michael is a
Managing Director of TA Associates.
* Michael was initially appointed as a director of
Speedcast Acquisitions Ltd (SAL) in Sep 2012.
Following the IPO, Speedcast undertook a
capital reconstruction and as a result acquired
all of the issued capital of SAL.

Edward Francis Sippel
Director

Term:

BA (Georgetown)

Director from
14 July 2014 to
31 December 2018*

Skills and experience: Edward is a
Managing Director of TA Associates and
Co-Head of TA Associates in Asia.
* Edward was initially appointed as a director of
Speedcast Acquisitions Ltd (SAL) in Aug 2012.
Following the IPO, Speedcast undertook a
capital reconstruction and as a result acquired
all of the issued capital of SAL.

* PJ was initially appointed as a director of
Speedcast Acquisitions Ltd (SAL) in Sep 2012.
Following the IPO, Speedcast undertook a
capital reconstruction and as a result acquired
all of the issued capital of SAL.
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Dividends
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

Interim dividend declared for the year ended 2018: AUD 2.40 cents (fully franked),
2017: AUD 2.40 cents (fully franked)

4,252

4,494

Final dividend declared for the year ended 2017: AUD 4.80 cents (fully franked),
2016: AUD 2.40 cents (fully franked)

9,282

4,292

13,534

8,786

Dividends declared during the year

In addition to the above declared dividends, on 25 February 2019, the Board approved a final dividend of AUD 4.8 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2018. The dividend will be paid on 23 May 2019 to all shareholders registered on the
record date of 8 March 2019. The ex-dividend date for dividend entitlement will be 7 March 2019. The dividend will be unfranked
for Australian taxation purposes.
The final dividend of AUD 4.8 cents per share brings the 2018 total dividend to AUD 7.2 cents per share, in-line with the total
dividend for 2017.

Principal Activities
Speedcast’s core business vision is to be a global leader in the provision of remote communications and IT services. We seek to
achieve this vision through the delivery of high quality, innovative and tailored solutions combined with exceptional customer
service. Speedcast provides products and services in the following categories:

Network Services
Speedcast offers managed satellite, cellular and fibre network services. We also design, deploy, operate and maintain
telecommunications networks for our customers.

Value Added Services
Speedcast offers its customers a range of value-added services, including user applications (cybersecurity, email, voice, video
conferencing, video surveillance), network optimisation (firewalls, filtering, data compression) and network monitoring and
management (including reporting tools and remote access for IT technicians).

Professional Services
Speedcast offers Professional Services to its customers, including project management, network design and optimisation,
managed cybersecurity services, training services and remote IT management and support services.

Wholesale Voice:
Speedcast sells wholesale Voice services to telecom customers, which are then re-sold to end users.

Equipment Sales
Speedcast sells network equipment directly to customers, including satellite terminals, modems, routers and other types of
equipment related to the provision of Network and Value Added Services.

System Integration
Speedcast provides network and IT systems integration services to public safety, utility, oil and gas telecom, and Maritime
clients around the world.
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Directors and Company Secretary
The following persons were directors of Speedcast International Ltd during the whole of the financial year and up to the date
of this report unless otherwise stated:
•

John Angus Mackay

•

Grant Scott Ferguson

•

Peter Edward Jackson

•

Michael Martin Malone

•

Pierre-Jean (‘PJ’) Joseph Andre Beylier

•

Caroline Van Scheltinga was appointed as a director on 5 April 2018 and continues in office at the date of this report.

•

Michael Stuart Berk was a director from the beginning of the financial year until his resignation on 17 May 2018.

•

Edward Francis Sippel was a director from the beginning of the financial year until his resignation on 31 December 2018.

The joint company secretaries are Dominic Thomas Edward Gyngell and Clive Cuthell, who were both appointed to the position
on 28 June 2018. Dominic also holds the position of General Counsel in the Company and Clive is Speedcast’s Chief Financial
Officer. The company secretary until 28 June 2018 was Andrew William Metcalfe.

Directors’ meetings
During the financial year, 11 Board, 5 Audit and Risk Committee and 1 Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings
were held. Attendances by each Director and sub-committee member during the year were as follows:
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee
Meeting

Principal Board
Meeting

Ad-hoc Board
Meeting

Audit and Risk
Committee
Meeting

John Angus Mackay

6

5

5

Pierre-Jean (“PJ”) Joseph Andre Beylier

6

5

Grant Scott Ferguson

6

4

Peter Edward Jackson

6

4

Edward Francis Sippel

5

5

2

1

Michael Martin Malone

6

3

4

1

Michael Stuart Berk

1

Caroline Van Scheltinga

5

4

Total held

6

5

5

1

Directors

5

1
1

Indemnification and insurance of directors and officers
Speedcast International Limited, paid a premium during the period from 1 January to 31 December 2018 of USD 332,000 (2017:
USD 171,500) to insure the Directors and Officers of the Company and its worldwide controlled entities.
The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought
against the officers in their capacity as officers of entities in the Group, and any other payments arising from liabilities incurred
by the officers in connection with such proceedings. This insurance does not cover liabilities that arise from conduct involving
wilful breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the officers of their position or of information to gain an advantage
for themselves or someone else or to cause detriment to the Group.
It is not possible to apportion the premium between amounts relating to the insurance against legal costs and those relating
to other liabilities.
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Remuneration of Directors and Key management Personnel
The Remuneration Report is set out on pages 32 to 42, and forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Share Options
At the balance sheet date, the unissued ordinary shares of Speedcast International Limited under options are as follows:
Number of unissued
shares under Option

Scheme

Grant Date

Vesting Date

Long Term Incentive Plan 2015

9 September 2015

31 December 2018

314,626

Long Term Incentive Plan 2017

15 May 2017

31 December 2019

575,367

Long Term Incentive Plan 2018

15 May 2018

31 December 2020

869,139
1,759,132

118,401 shares were issued in the year in relation to the vesting of options under the restricted management rights scheme and
316,077 shares were issued in the year in relation to the 2014 and 2015 Long Term Incentive Plans. 314,626 rights related to the
LTIP 2015 scheme vested on 31 December 2018 and shares remained unissued as at 31 December 2018.
Option holders do not have any rights to participate in any issues of shares or other interests in the Company or any entity.
For details of options issued to Directors and other Key Management Personnel as remuneration, refer to the Remuneration
Report on pages 32 to 42 of this report.

Review of results and operations
Speedcast’s operations, financial position, business strategies and outlook are detailed in the Operating and Financial Review
on pages 8 to 17 of this report.

Significant changes in the state of affairs
On 28 August 2018, the Group entered into a definitive agreement to acquire 100% of the business of Globecomm Systems Inc.,
a leading provider of remote communications networks, especially in the Government, Maritime and Media markets.
The acquisition was completed on 14 December 2018. The acquisition was funded by a USD 175m incremental term loan addon to its existing USD 425m U.S. Term Loan B facility (due 2025).

Events after the reporting date
On 8 March 2019 314,626 shares were issued in full settlement of the 2015 LTIP scheme. Refer to note 12 of the Financial Report.
Other than the above, there have been no other material post balance sheet events since 31 December 2018.

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.

Non-audit services
The Board of Directors, in accordance with advice from the Audit and Risk Committee, are satisfied that the provision of non-audit
services during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act
2001. The Directors are satisfied that the services disclosed below did not compromise the external auditor’s independence for
the following reasons:
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•

All non-audit services are reviewed and approved by the Audit and Risk Committee prior to commencement to ensure they
do not adversely affect the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

•

The nature of the services provided do not compromise the general principles relating to auditor independence in
accordance with APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants set by the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standard Board.

Speedcast International Limited

The following fees were paid or payable to the external auditors for non-audit services provided:
2018
USD

2017
USD

66,732

448,790

–

172,553

66,732

621,343

494,918

144,065

Transaction related services

–

60,456

Other services

–

7,626

494,918

212,147

334,932

274,473

10,881

9,662

345,813

284,135

Remuneration of auditor of the parent entity PricewaterhouseCoopers Australia (“PwC”)
Taxation services
Transaction related services
Total remuneration of PwC for non-audit services
Remuneration to other related entities of PwC
Taxation services

Total remuneration of other related entities of PwC for non-audit services
Remuneration to auditors other than PwC or its related entities
Taxation services
Transaction related services
Total remuneration to auditors other than PwC or its related entities for non-audit services

Auditor’s independence declaration
A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is included at
page 43 of this report.

Environmental regulations
The Group’s operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulations in any of its operating countries.

Proceedings on behalf of the Company
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of
the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility on
behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings.
No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Company with leave of the Court under section 237 of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Corporate governance
Speedcast International Limited and the Board are committed to achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of
corporate governance.
Speedcast has reviewed its corporate governance practices against the Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations
(3rd edition) published by the ASX Corporate Governance Council. The 2018 corporate governance statement is dated
31 December 2018 and reflects the corporate governance practices in place throughout the 2018 financial year. The 2018
corporate governance statement was approved by the Board on 28 March 2019. A description of the Group’s current corporate
governance practices is set out in the Group’s corporate governance statement which can be viewed at https://www.speedcast.
com/investor-relations/corporate-governance.

Rounding
The Company is of a kind referred to in the ASIC Legislative Instrument 2016/191 issued by the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission, relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the Directors’ Report and financial statements. Amounts
in the Directors’ Report and financial statements have been rounded off in accordance with that class order to the nearest
thousand dollars unless otherwise stated.

Annual Report 2018

31

REMUNERATION
REPORT

Team Spirit
We work together to pursue our
goals and objectives, support
each other and focus on the right
outcome.
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This Remuneration Report details remuneration information as it applies to
Speedcast International Ltd Key Management Personnel (“KMP”) and Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2018 in accordance with the requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001 (the Act) and its regulations.
This information has been audited as required by section 208(3C) of the Act.
Our remuneration disclosures aim to maintain a high standard of clarity and
transparency in communications with all stakeholders. KMP holding office
during the financial year are listed below.

Non-Executive Directors
John Angus Mackay
Michael Stuart Berk
Grant Scott Ferguson
Peter Edward Jackson
Michael Martin Malone
Edward Francis Sippel
Caroline Van Scheltinga

(resigned 17 May 2018)

(resigned 31 December 2018)
(appointed 5 April 2018)

Executive Directors
Pierre-Jean Joseph Andre Beylier

Chief Executive Officer

Other KMP
Clive Cuthell1

Chief Financial Officer and
Joint Company Secretary

Ian Baldwin2

Chief Financial Officer

Keith Johnson

Chief Operating Officer,
Executive Vice President, Energy

Athina Vezyri

Executive Vice President, Maritime

Erwan Emilian

Executive Vice President,
Enterprise & Emerging Markets

Richard Carden3

Executive Vice President, Integration

1 Clive Cuthell joined Speedcast as Chief Financial Officer on 9 April 2018 and was appointed Joint
Company Secretary on 28 June 2018
2 Ian Baldwin resigned as Chief Financial Officer on 2 March 2018
3 Richard Carden left the company on 28 February 2018
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Remuneration Policy
The Board’s objective is to ensure that Speedcast’s
remuneration supports achievement of the group’s strategy,
and drives performance and behaviours which are in the
group’s best interests. Remuneration matters are handled
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which is a
sub-committee of the Board.

The key principles which govern the group’s remuneration
framework are to:
•
•
•

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends
to the Board the remuneration packages for the KMP on an
annual basis. In carrying out its duties, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee assesses the appropriateness of
the nature and amount of remuneration on a periodic basis,
by reference to relevant local employment market conditions.
The overall objective is to ensure maximum stakeholder
benefits from the attraction and retention of a high quality
executive team. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee forms its own independent decisions on KMP
remuneration.

•

•

Link executive rewards to the creation of shareholder
value;
Provide market-competitive remuneration package, with
appropriate balance of fixed and variable remuneration;
Ensure variable portion of executive remuneration is
dependent upon meeting pre-determined performance
objectives;
Ensure that performance objectives for variable
remuneration are aligned to the drivers of the Group’s
success and the achievement of overall business
objectives; and
Allow for Board discretion to be applied, in order to
ensure that remuneration outcomes are appropriate for
the Company’s circumstances.

KMP incentive arrangement
Speedcast has established a number of incentive arrangements to enable attraction, motivation and retention of KMP of
Speedcast.
The remuneration awarded for 2018 contains the following elements:
•
•
•
•

Base salary;
Allowances and non-monetary benefits;
Short-term incentive “STI” (Cash Bonus); and
Long-term incentive “LTI”.

The target allocation of KMP remuneration between base salary and variable remuneration (excluding allowances and nonmonetary benefits) for 2018 was as follows.
Base Salary

STI

LTI*

Pierre-Jean (“PJ”) Joseph Andre Beylier

36%

28%

36%

Clive Cuthell

43%

22%

35%

Ian Baldwin

56%

22%

22%

Keith Johnson

42%

16%

42%

Athina Vezyri

42%

16%

42%

Erwan Emilian

53%

21%

26%

Richard Frank Carden

63%

25%

12%

* LTI percentage is calculated based on the value of the shares over which options are granted at the date of issuance of the option and not the fair value of the
share option itself.

Fixed remuneration (base salary and fixed allowance) is reviewed on an annual basis taking into consideration individual
performance and competency, the consolidated entity’s performance and market conditions relevant to the role and location.
Both the cash-based short-term incentive and the long-term equity-based incentive are subject to achievement of key
performance indicators “KPI” or hurdles set and assessed by the Board.
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For the CEO, the target STI bonus is 75% of base salary, and
for other KMP it ranges between 40% and 50% of base salary.
Both Financial and non-Financial Key performance indicators
“KPI” are set each year and measured at the end of each year.
The STI bonus is paid entirely at the discretion of the board.

For 2018, after considering various factors (including financial
performance), it was determined that the STI bonus would be nil.

The achievement of the full 2018 STI for the CEO was weighted
towards performance of KPI on the following areas:

The Board retains discretion to increase or decrease incentive
payments to take account of significant events and/or other
factors that were not anticipated when the targets were
established. To the extent that an individual outperforms the
ambitious targets set, it is possible for payout to be received
that is in excess of 100% of their STI target.

•
•
•

40% – Group Revenue
40% – Group EBITDA
20% – EBITDA Cash Conversion

Portion of target STI paid to CEO: 0%
The achievement of the full 2018 STI for other KMP was
weighted towards performance of KPI on the following areas:
•
•
•

25% – Group Revenue
25% – Group EBITDA
50% – Role specific quantitative measures, including
divisional revenue, contribution margin, DSO and capacity
utilisation targets, among other measure

The above measures were chosen as they represent the key
milestones on the path to delivering the Group’s strategy.

The Group has very high expectations of Management and
sets rigorous targets in each of the performance measures,
as it seeks to continue to drive maximum performance.
The table below shows the KMP remuneration compared
to key performance indicators (KPIs) of the Group. With
the exception of FY 2017, the KPIs disclosed have not been
updated for the impacts of new accounting standards. FY
2017 KPIs have been restated to account for the impacts of
AASB 9 – Financial instruments.

Portion of target STI paid to other KMP: 0%
2018

2017
restated

2016

2015

2014

Underlying revenue ($m)

623.1

514.2

218.0

167.6

121.5

Underlying EBITDA ($m)

132.0

123.3

41.5

29.3

20.7

Underlying NPATA ($m)

48.1

46.0

19.2

14.8

11.1

1.9

6.0

5.9

4.3

(6.9)

13.5

13.8

7.8

5.9

33.1**

710.5%

230.0%

133.0%

137.7%

n/a

28.1%

33.3%

40.9%

40.0%

n/a

(45.7%)

53.1%

(7.9%)

125.5%

2.4%

3.0%

5.9%

8.4%

Statutory profit ($m)
Dividend payment* ($m)
Dividend payout ratio (%) (statutory profit)
Dividend payout ratio (%) (underlying NPATA)
Increase/ (decrease) in share price*** (%)
Total KMP remuneration as a percentage of
underlying EBITDA for the year (%)
*
**
***
****

(5.6%)****
14.1%

2018 final dividend to be paid in 2019 estimated based on exchange rate at date of declaration and shares to be issued
$30m dividend was declared pre-IPO
Compound yearly share price growth rate since listing is 11.8%
Decrease in share price since date of IPO to 31 December 2014

In addition to setting KPIs at a stretch level, the Group also requires the below conditions to be met in order for an individual to
become entitled to receive payments under the STI:
•

KMP still employed when bonus is paid;

•

Group meeting all bank covenants (this operates to ensure that in the pursuit of challenging revenue targets, the executive
team is also required to maintain suitable financial discipline in order to receive any bonus).

The STI is not the exclusive method of providing incentive remuneration for employees of Speedcast and the Board has
discretion to provide other forms of incentive remuneration in appropriate circumstances.
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Long-term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
LTIP’s have been established in order to:
•
•
•

Align the interests of Speedcast’s executives with those of shareholders;
Encourage outperformance against the market; and
Encourage the retention of key executives.

Participation in the plan, which is approved by the Board, is based on sustained individual performance and value to the
Company.
For 2014, 2015, 2017 and 2018, LTIP awards have been in the form of performance rights, which on vesting entitle the executive
to receive a fully-paid ordinary share in Speedcast, for no consideration. The Board considers that this method of delivering the
LTIP allows for the best alignment between the interests of executives and shareholders, as the value of the LTIP will change in
tune with the Company’s share price. There were no LTIP awards in 2016.
Key terms of all LTIP awards are given below.
Eligibility

Offers may be made at the Board’s discretion to employees of Speedcast or any other person that
the Board determines to be eligible to receive a grant under the plan.

Types of securities

The Plan Rules provide flexibility for Speedcast to grant one or more of the following securities as
incentives, subject to the terms of individual offers:
• Performance rights
• Options; and
• Restricted shares.
Options are an entitlement to receive a share upon payment of an applicable exercise price.
Performance rights and restricted shares are an entitlement to receive a share for no
consideration.

Offers under the Plan

Offers are made at the Board’s discretion. The Board can set the terms and conditions on which
it will offer performance rights, options and restricted shares in individual offer documents. The
offer documents must contain the information required by the Plan Rules.
Offers must be accepted by the employee and can be made on an opt-in or opt-out basis.

Issue price

Unless the Board determines otherwise, no payment is required for a grant of a performance
right, option or restricted share under the Plan.

Vesting

Vesting of performance rights, options and restricted shares under the Plan is subject to any
vesting or performance conditions determined by the Board and specified in the offer document.
Options must be exercised by the employee and the employee is required to pay the exercise
price before shares are allocated.
Subject to the Plan Rules and the terms of the specific offer document, any performance
rights, options or restricted shares will either lapse or be forfeited if the relevant vesting and
performance conditions are not satisfied.

Cessation of
employment

Under the Plan Rules, the Board has a broad discretion in relation to the treatment of entitlements
on cessation of employment. It is intended that individual offer documents will provide more
specific information on how the entitlements will be treated if the participating employee ceases
employment.

Clawback and
preventing
inappropriate
benefits

The Plan Rules provide the Board with broad “clawback” powers if, amongst other things:
The participant has acted fraudulently or dishonestly, has wilfully breached their duties, or the
Company is required or entitled under law or company policy to reclaim remuneration from the
participants; or
The participant’s entitlements vest as a result of a fraud, dishonesty or wilful breach of duty of any
other person and the Board is of the opinion that the incentives would not have otherwise vested.
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Change of control

The Board may determine that all or a specified number of a participant’s performance rights,
options or restricted shares will vest or cease to be subject to restrictions in a change of control
event in accordance with the Plan Rules.

Other terms

The Plan contains customary and usual terms for dealing with administration, variation,
suspension and termination of the Plan. The terms of the Plan may be varied in cases where
domestic legislation requires.

2018 LTIP Offer
The key terms of the 2018 LTIP arrangements are summarised in the table below:
Participants and value
of grant

The participation of the Chief Executive Officer required approval by shareholders at the annual
general meeting. The Board obtained approval to grant 112,907 performance rights to Mr Beylier,
with a face value of USD 210,230.
Participation of other KMP who are not directors of the Company was as follows:
• Chief Financial Officer – 80% of base salary;
• Other KMP – 40-100% of base salary.

Grant of performance
rights

The 2018 LTIP offer comprised of performance rights.
A performance right entitles the holder to acquire a share for nil consideration at the end of the
performance period, subject to meeting specific performance conditions.
The number of performance rights granted was based on a fixed percentage of the relevant
participant’s annual fixed remuneration and was issued to the participant at no cost.

Performance
conditions,
performance period
and vesting

The performance condition must be satisfied in order for the performance right to vest. For the
LTIP schemes:
• 50% of the total performance rights will vest subject to the achievement of a Total Shareholder
Return (TSR) performance target for the Company that exceeds the performance of the S&P/
ASX Small Ordinaries Index (AUD) (Index) over the performance period and subject to the
participant being an employee at the end of the performance period (“TSR component”); and
• 50% of the performance rights will vest solely subject to the participant being an employee at
the end of the performance period (“service component”).
Performance against the above conditions will be assessed by the Board as soon as practicable
following the completion of the performance period (31 December 2020). Performance rights
that remain unvested following this assessment will lapse immediately.

Vesting conditions –
TSR component

Full vesting of the TSR component can only occur when the TSR performance of the Company is
at least equal to the performance of the Index over the performance period.
Where the Company’s TSR performance does not meet this threshold, there is no vesting unless
the Board exercises its discretion to allow partial vesting of up to 50% of the TSR component.

Rights associated
with performance
rights

The performance rights do not attract dividends, voting rights or any capital distributions.

Restrictions on
dealing

Participants must not sell, transfer, encumber, hedge or otherwise deal with performance rights.

Cessation of
employment

If the participant ceases employment for death, permanent disability or is otherwise determined
to be a “good leaver” by the Board, unvested performance rights will vest in full, unless otherwise
determined by the Board.
If the participant ceases employment in any other circumstances, all unvested performance rights
will lapse, unless otherwise determined by the Board.

Change of control

In a situation where there is likely to be a change of control, the Board has the discretion to
accelerate vesting of some or all of the performance rights. Where only some of the performance
rights are vested on a change of control, the remainder of the performance rights will
immediately lapse.
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For the 2018 LTIP award, the Board determined that the relative TSR measure against a comparator group comprising the
ASX/S&P Small Ordinaries Index was appropriate for measuring the long-term performance of the executive team, as Speedcast
was competing for investment with other companies in that index. The Board is considering whether a change in comparator
groups is appropriate for future awards.
The Board has determined that linking the remainder of the LTI performance rights to continued service with Speedcast is in the
best interests of retaining the talented executives who are necessary to the achievement of the Company’s strategy. Speedcast
operates in a highly specialised field, and many of its senior executives are based in markets (such as Hong Kong, USA and
certain other key markets) where longer-term incentives are typically linked solely or partially to continued service.

Legacy LTI – Restricted Management Rights
Restricted Management Rights (“RMR”) were issued by the Company under the equity incentive plan in previous financial
years. The RMR effectively replace certain rights to shares of Speedcast Acquisitions Limited which were issued by Speedcast
Acquisitions Limited to certain employees of Speedcast prior to the Prospectus Date. The issue of RMR in substitution for existing
rights held by Management comprises an additional component of the corporate restructure undertaken during that year.
The Company made an offer of rights to acquire Shares in the Company to the affected members of Senior Management. The
offer of RMR is made on the terms set out below and pursuant to the Plan Rules.
Further details of the offer are set out below:
Participants

The RMR was granted to certain members of the Senior Management that the Board determines
to be eligible to receive a right.

Grant date, grant
conditions and timing
of future offers

The RMR was granted in October 2013, February 2014 and June 2014. There will be no future
grants of RMR.

Grants of RMR

Each RMR will entitle the holder to acquire a share for nil consideration at the end of the relevant
vesting period, subject to meeting the vesting condition.
The number of RMR granted was 1,120,674 and RMR were issued to the participants at no cost.
No exercise price is payable in respect of the RMR.

Vesting condition and
vesting periods

The offer is divided into tranches of RMR with different vesting periods.
Each tranche of RMR will vest subject to the satisfaction of the vesting condition over the vesting
period relevant to that tranche.
The vesting condition is continued employment with Speedcast.
Vesting will occur over a total period of four years from grant date.
For each tranche, the vesting condition must be satisfied at the end of the relevant vesting period
for that tranche in order for the RMR to vest. The tranches and vesting period is as follows:
• 25% of the RMR will vest 12 months after grant date if the participant remains in employment
with Speedcast (first tranche); and
• Following vesting of the first tranche, at the end of each three month period another 6.25% of
the RMR will vest of the participant remains in the employment with Speedcast.
The RMR in each tranche will lapse immediately if the vesting condition for that tranche is not
satisfied at the end of the relevant vesting period.
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Entitlements
associated with RMR

The RMR do not attract dividends, voting rights or any capital distributions.

Restrictions on
dealing

Participants must not sell, transfer, encumber, hedge or otherwise deal with RMR.
Shares acquired by participants on vesting of their RMR will be subject to the Company’s
Securities Dealing Policy.

Speedcast International Limited

Cessation of
employment

If the participant resigns or the Company terminates the participant’s employment in accordance
with their employment contract, all unvested RMR will lapse, unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

Change of control

In a situation where there is likely to be a change of control, the Board has the discretion to
accelerate vesting of some or all of the RMR. Where only some of the RMR are vested on a change
of control, the remainder of the RMR will immediately lapse.

Executive Service Agreements
Remuneration and other employment terms for the CEO and other Key Management Personnel are formalised in a contract of
employment. The main terms and conditions of the contracts are set out below.
Name

Term

Employment location

Notice Period

Termination Period

Pierre-Jean (“PJ”) Joseph Andre Beylier

Open Ended

Hong Kong

3 months

3 months

Clive Cuthell

Open Ended

Australia

3 months

3 months

Keith Johnson

Open Ended

U.S.A.

3 months

3 months

Athina Vezyri

Open ended

Greece

3 months

3 months

Erwan Emilian

Open ended

Switzerland

3 months

3 months

Loans to KMP
There are no outstanding loans to KMP as at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

Non-Executive Directors
The Board decides the remuneration from the Company to which each non-executive Director is entitled for his or her services
as a Director. The total amount provided to all Directors for their services as Directors in any financial year must not exceed in
aggregate the amount fixed by the Company in the annual general meeting. This amount has been fixed at USD 500,000 (2017:
USD 500,000).
For 2018, the annual base amounts paid to each non-executive Director by the Company are USD 113,750 to the Chairman,
USD 75,000 to each other non-executive Director and an additional USD 10,000 to the chair of the Audit, Business Risk and
Compliance Committee and an additional USD 5,000 to the chair of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
Michael Berk and Edward Sippel did not receive fees for acting as Directors of Speedcast.
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Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Name

Position

Non-Executive Directors
John Angus Mackay

Independent Non-Executive Director

Michael Stuart Berk

Non-Executive Director

Grant Scott Ferguson

Independent Non-Executive Director

Peter Edward Jackson

Independent Non-Executive Director

Michael Martin Malone

Independent Non-Executive Director

Edward Francis Sippel

Non-Executive Director

Caroline Van Scheltinga

Independent Non-Executive Director

Sub-total Non-Executive Directors
Executive Directors
Pierre-Jean Joseph Andre Beylier

Chief Executive Officer

2018
2017

Other KMP
Clive Cuthell

Chief Financial Officer

Ian Baldwin

Chief Financial Officer

Keith Johnson

Chief Operating Officer, Executive Vice President, Energy

Athina Vezyri

Executive Vice President, Maritime

Erwan Emilian1

Executive Vice President, Enterprise & Emerging Markets

Richard Frank Carden2

Executive Vice President, Integration

Piers Cunningham3

Executive Vice President, Maritime

Chung Wai Kit4

Senior Vice President, Operations & Engineering

Andrew Burdall5

Executive Vice President, Enterprise & Emerging Markets

David Kagan6

Chief Operating Officer

2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017

Total KMP remuneration

1
2
3
4
5
6

40

2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017

Erwan Emilian joined Speedcast on 15 September 2017
Richard Frank Carden left Speedcast on 28 February 2018
Piers Cunningham ceased as Executive Vice President, Maritime on 20 September 2017
Chung Wai Kit no longer deemed to be in Key Management Personnel as of 31 May 2017
Andrew Burdall left Speedcast on 18 October 2017
David Kagan joined Speedcast on 6 March 2017 and resigned as Chief Operating Officer on 1 December 2017

Speedcast International Limited

Short term benefits

Post-employment

Short Term
Incentive Non-Monetary
benefits
(Cash Bonus)
USD
USD

Superannuation
or equivalent
USD

Share-based
payments
USD

Total
Remuneration
USD

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

113,750
102,500
–
–
85,000
85,000
80,000
80,000
75,000
75,000
–
–
56,250
–
410,000
342,500

–
120,220

11,791
12,245

76,821
72,128

382,105
312,839

1,043,269
1,042,371

–
–
–
–
–
64,531
–
62,500
–
9,792
–
–
–
–
–
6,787
–
–
–
–
–
263,830

–
–
–
–
22,219
24,085
35,876
19,437
5,725
–
–
1,714
–
–
–
3,853
–
–
–
18,179
75,611
79,513

11,479
–
1,659
19,710
21,048
12,372
14,010
18,571
7,961
11,946
3,846
8,968
–
9,398
–
12,216
–
15,120
–
–
136,824
180,429

54,693
–
63,319
75,898
154,879
83,710
92,824
33,404
21,533
–
(62,682)
93,010
–
28,002
–
18,397
–
(18,768)
–
–
706,671
626,492

339,732
–
136,496
384,679
554,572
501,648
468,296
413,181
276,242
90,282
(48,299)
233,312
–
150,953
–
122,948
–
181,782
–
280,679
3,180,308
3,744,335

Cash Salary
and Fees
USD

Fixed
Allowance
USD

113,750
102,500
–
–
85,000
85,000
80,000
80,000
75,000
75,000
–
–
56,250
–
410,000
342,500

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

512,142
480,855

60,410
44,084

273,560
–
71,518
289,071
349,226
309,750
325,586
279,269
241,023
68,544
10,537
129,620
–
105,263
–
81,439
–
181,048
–
262,500
2,193,592
2,529,859

–
–
–
–
7,200
7,200
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
8,290
–
256
–
4,382
–
–
67,610
64,212

Fixed Allowance
Non-monetary benefits

Education allowance to PJ Beylier, Car allowance to Keith Johnson,
Company Car, Medical, Dental and Life insurance to PJ Beylier, Business travel, Group Health, Dental and Disability insurance to Keith
Johnson, Company car and Medical insurance to Athina Vezyri, Accident and sick leave insurance for Erwan Emilian.
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Movement in Performance Rights for the year ended 31 December 2018

Name
Executive Directors
Pierre-Jean Joseph Beylier
Other KMP
Clive Cuthell
Ian Baldwin
Keith Johnson
Athina Vezyri
Erwan Emilian
Richard Frank Carden
Total

Held at 1
January
2018 Granted Exercised Forfeited

Lapsed

Held at 31
Vested
December during the
2018
year1

Vested and
exercisable
at 31
December
2018

428,821

112,907

(117,030)

–

(49,287)

375,411

(147,861)

147,861

–
99,808
114,033
47,886
–
93,147
783,695

74,236
–
82,603
72,681
29,227
–
371,654

–
(60,667)
–
–
–
(44,751)
(222,448)

–
(39,141)
–
–
–
(48,396)
(87,537)

–
–
(15,321)
(5,266)
–
–
(69,874)

74,236
–
181,315
115,301
29,227
–
775,490

–
–
(45,963)
(15,798)
–
–
209,622

–
–
45,963
15,798
–
–
209,622

1 Amounts vested on 31 December 2018 and are included within the total amount held as disclosed above. On the 25 February 2019, the board reviewed the
performance of the company over the vesting period and the contribution of the employees holding options and decided to issue all shares within the TSR
component that were under their discretion to issue.

Movement in Restricted Management Rights for the year ended 31 December 2018

Name

Held at 1
January
2018

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

100,060

–

(33,353)

(66,707)

Held at 31
Vested
December during the
2018
year

Vested and
exercisable
at 31
December
2018

Other KMP
Richard Frank Carden

–

–

–

No management rights lapsed during the year

Key Management Personnel Shareholdings

Name

Total shares
held as at
31 December 2017

Movements
during the year

Total shares
held as at
31 December 2018

% of shareholding

289,210
–
432,016
279,210
272,376
–
–

6,085
–
35,000
33,700
10,000
125,000
15,000

295,295
–
467,016
312,910
282,376
125,000
15,000

0.12%
n/a
0.20%
0.13%
0.12%
0.05%
0.01%

8,157,903

207,900

8,365,803

3.49%

–
–
–
1,425,497
–
595,667

19,746
60,667
–
–
–
78,104

19,746
n/a
–
1,425,497
–
n/a

0.01%
n/a
–
0.60%
–
n/a

11,451,879

591,202

11,308,643

Non-Executive Directors
John Mackay
Michael Berk1
Grant Ferguson
Peter Jackson
Michael Malone
Edward Sippel2
Caroline Van Scheltinga
Executive Director
PJ Joseph Andre Beylier
Other KMP
Clive Cuthell
Ian Baldwin
Keith Johnson
Athina Vezyri
Erwan Emilian
Richard Frank Carden
Total

1 Michael Berk has an indirect interest in shares held by TA investors IV, L.P. Sold down on 2 March 2018. He resigned on 17 May 2018. There were no share
movements during his period as a director.
2 Edward Sippel has an indirect interest in shares held by TA investors IV, L.P. Sold down on 2 March 2018. He resigned on 31 Dec 2018. The share movements were
during his period as a director.

42

Speedcast International Limited

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE
DECLARATION

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
As lead auditor for the audit of Speedcast International Limited for the year ended 31 December 2018,
I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:
(a)

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

(b)

no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Speedcast International Limited and the entities it controlled during
the year.

Andrew Forman
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Adelaide
29 March 2019

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
Level 11, 70 Franklin Street, ADELAIDE SA 5000, GPO Box 418, ADELAIDE SA 5001
T: +61 8 8218 7000, F: +61 8 8218 7999, www.pwc.com.au
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018

Revenue from continuing operations

Note

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

6

623,095

514,173

(336,931)

(245,810)

Cost of equipment and bandwidth services
Other gains/(losses)

7

619

(1,078)

Staff costs

8

(95,709)

(91,520)

Acquisition related costs

(4,354)

(9,212)

Integration costs

(4,109)

(4,044)

(2,202)

(6,307)

Other expenses

9

(58,683)

(53,056)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

17

(37,513)

(42,516)

Amortisation of intangible assets

18

(40,003)

(28,610)

Finance costs, net

10

(39,446)

(24,272)

4,764

7,748

(2,836)

(1,756)

1,928

5,992

Restructuring costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

11

Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

23

1,847

6,001

Non-controlling interests

23

81

(9)

Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified to profit and loss
Currency translation difference

23

(7,132)

13,176

Change in fair value of interest rate swap cash flow hedges

23

(3,272)

1,054

23

(2,121)

–

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

(12,525)

14,230

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

(10,597)

20,222

(10,693)

20,233

Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Change in fair value of cancelled interest rate swap cash flow hedges

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

96

Non-controlling interests

(11)

Earnings per share
• Basic profit per share (cents)

25

0.77

2.51

• Diluted profit per share (cents)

25

0.76

2.49

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
2018
Note

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

14

79,654

54,844

Trade and other receivables

15

232,469

147,609

Inventories

16

28,926

14,930

Income tax receivable
Total current assets

4,489

4,196

345,538

221,579

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

17

140,208

95,188

Goodwill and intangible assets

18

710,159

623,944

Deferred tax assets

19

21,624

9,739

Other receivables

15

2,489

2,574

Derivative financial instruments

22

–

1,506

874,480

732,951

1,220,018

954,530

Total non-current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

20

252,833

165,729

Borrowings

21

6,004

–

Income tax payable
Total current liabilities

3,441

5,255

262,278

170,984

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

21

625,391

432,213

Trade and other payables

20

24,469

29,538

Derivative financial instruments

22

6,199

–

Deferred tax liabilities

19

19,921

18,707

Total non-current liabilities

675,980

480,458

Total liabilities

938,258

651,442

Net assets

281,760

303,088

364,690

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Contributed equity

23

365,128

Other reserves

23

(10,330)

Accumulated losses

23

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

23

1,190

(76,475)

(63,497)

278,323

302,383

3,437

705

281,760

303,088

Consolidated Statement of Financial PositionThe above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Attributable to owners of Speedcast International Limited
Contributed Accumulated
equity
losses
USD’000
USD’000
Balance at 1 January 2017
Impact of applying AASB 9
(note 35)
Balance at 1 January 2017
(restated)
Profit for the year (restated)

Other
reserves
USD’000

Total
USD’000

Noncontrolling
interests
USD’000

Total
equity
USD’000

361,392

(57,224)

(13,915)

290,253

–

290,253

–

(3,488)

–

(3,488)

–

(3,488)

361,392

(60,712)

(13,915)

286,765

–

286,765

–

6,001

–

6,001

(9)

5,992

Other comprehensive income

–

–

14,232

14,232

(2)

14,230

Total comprehensive income

–

6,001

14,232

20,233

(11)

20,222

Dividends (note 24)

–

(8,786)

–

(8,786)

–

(8,786)

Shares issued in relation to
SAIT deferred consideration
Business combinations (note 27)
Employee share scheme – issue of
shares (note 23)
Employee share scheme – value of
employee services (notes 8 and 12)
Balance at 31 December 2017
(restated)
Impact of applying AASB 15 (note 35)
Balance at 1 January 2018
(restated)
Profit/(loss) for the year

3,150

–

–

3,150

–

3,150

–

–

–

–

716

716

148

–

(148)

–

–

–

–

–

1,021

1,021

–

1,021

3,298

(8,786)

873

(4,615)

716

(3,899)

364,690

(63,497)

1,190

302,383

705

303,088

–

(1,291)

–

(1,291)

–

(1,291)

364,690

(64,788)

1,190

301,092

705

301,797

–

1,847

81

1,928

–

1,847

Other comprehensive income

–

–

(12,540)

(12,540)

15

(12,525)

Total comprehensive income

–

1,847

(12,540)

(10,693)

96

(10,597)

Dividends (note 24)

–

(13,534)

(13,534)

–

(13,534)

Business combinations (note 27)

–

–

–

–

2,636

2,636

438

–

(438)

–

–

–

–

–

1,458

1,458

–

1,458

438

(13,534)

1,020

(12,076)

2,636

(9,440)

365,128

(76,475)

(10,330)

278,323

3,437

Employee share scheme – issue of
shares (note 23)
Employee share scheme – value of
employee services (notes 8 and 12)
Balance at 31 December 2018

–

281,760

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Note

2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

640,166

536,963

(526,896)

(430,331)

(30,693)

(15,859)

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Finance costs paid

316

1,090

(14,774)

(12,804)

26

68,119

79,059

27

(154,059)

(477,891)

Interest received
Taxes paid
Net cash inflows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Receipt of funds held in escrow
Business acquisition transaction costs
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Payments for intangible assets
Net cash (outflows) from investing activities

–

422,380

(3,796)

(12,028)

(48,591)

(26,948)

818

3,371

(12,575)

(5,558)

(218,203)

(96,674)

Cash flows from financing activities
Transaction costs of issuance of ordinary shares
Proceeds from borrowings, net of transaction costs
Repayment of borrowings
Dividend paid

(550)

629,325

61,945

(443,080)

(1,723)

(12,768)

(8,750)

3,031

Proceeds from cancellation of interest rate swap

(224)

Repayments of obligations under finance leases

–
(3,065)

176,284

47,857

26,200

30,242

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

54,844

25,341

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

(1,390)

(739)

Net cash inflows from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Background and summary of significant changes
This financial report covers the consolidated financial statements and notes of Speedcast International Limited (henceforth
“SIL” or “the Company”), and its controlled entities (the “Group” or “Speedcast”).
During the year, the financial position and performance of the Group was particularly affected by the following events and
transactions during the reporting period:
•

The acquisition of Globecomm through the purchase of 100% of the share capital of HCT Acquisition LLC, the parent entity
of the Globecomm group. Globecomm is a leading provider of remote communications and multi-network infrastructure.
The acquisition strengthens Speedcast’s global leadership with enhanced competitive positions in Government, Maritime
and Enterprise. The acquisition was debt funded;

•

The acquisition of 20% of the share capital of In Aria! Limited. Control is exercised through the substantive rights to acquire
the remaining 80% of the company for a price that is not prohibitive. The acquisition enhanced Speedcast’s overall product
line in protected video transmission, it also added to the Group’s capabilities in providing services to the Media industry; and

•

The implementation of two new accounting standards AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and AASB 9 Financial
instruments.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
SIL is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian
Securities Exchange (“ASX”).
The financial report was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019. The Directors have the power to
amend and reissue the financial statements.
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. The
financial statements are for the consolidated entity consisting of Speedcast and its subsidiaries.
Where appropriate, comparative information has been amended to be consistent with current year disclosures.

(a) Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. The Company is a forprofit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.
Compliance with IFRS
These financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.
Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the circumstances when fair value
method has been applied as detailed in the accounting policies below.
New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group adopted the following new or revised accounting standards, which became effective for the reporting period
commencing on 1 January 2018:
•

AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB15; and

•

AASB 9 Financial instruments (revised December 2014) and AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 9 (December 2014)

Revisions to accounting policies as a result of these new standards have been incorporated into this note. The financial impact
of the accounting standards is given in note 35. The standards have also introduced new disclosure requirements that have
been incorporated throughout the financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2018
reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new standards
and interpretations is set out below.
AASB 16 Leases
AASB 16 Leases specifies how to recognise, measure and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting
model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for almost all leases. AASB 16 applies to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable undiscounted operating lease commitments of USD 62,295,000 refer
to note 28. The Group predominantly leases land and buildings for use in its operations. The following impacts are expected:
•

the total assets and liabilities on the balance sheet will increase, as a liability is recorded representing the fair value of
future lease payments and a corresponding asset is also recorded;

•

a decrease in the Group’s net assets is expected due to the reduction of the capitalised asset being on a straight line basis
whilst the liability reduces by the principle amount of repayments. Net current assets will show a larger decrease due to an
element of the liability being disclosed as current;

•

the profit and loss of the consolidated entity will be more susceptible to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
Entities within the Group predominantly have USD functional currencies due to the majority of the sales and cost of sales
being incurred in USD. Operating leases tend to be denominated in the currency of the country of operation. The right of
use asset is held at cost and not revalued however the liability is financial in nature so is subject to revaluations through
the statement of profit or loss;

•

interest expenses of the Group will be higher on application of the new standard due to the unwinding of the effective
interest rate implicit in the initial liability recognised. Interest expenses on a specific lease will be higher early in the life
of a lease due to the higher principal liability and lower later in the life of a lease, hence causing profit volatility over the
course of a leases life. This effect is expected to be partially mitigated due to the number of leases held with varying start
and end dates; and

•

operating cash flows will be higher as repayment of the principle portion of all lease liabilities will be classified as financing
activities.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in
the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires Management to exercise its judgment in the process of adopting the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 5.
Rounding of amounts
The Company is of a kind referred to in the ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191
issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the Directors’
Report and financial statements. Amounts in the Directors’ Report and financial statements have been rounded off in compliance
with that class order to the nearest thousand dollars.
Parent entity information
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of the consolidated entity only.
Supplementary information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 32.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December
2018 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. The Company and its subsidiaries together are referred to in
these financial statements as the ‘consolidated entity’.
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the consolidated entity has control. The consolidated entity controls an entity
when the consolidated entity is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is gained by the consolidated entity. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the consolidated entity, are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the consolidated entity.
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest,
without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration transferred
and the book value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity attributable to the parent.

(c) Foreign currency translation
(i)

Functional currency

The functional currency for each entity in the Group, is the currency of the primary economic environment in which that entity
operates. For many entities, this is United States Dollars (“US$, “USD” or “US Dollar”) but for certain entities this is the currency
of the country in which they are located.
(ii)

Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in other currencies are converted to the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at
the date of the transaction or valuation where items are re-measured. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at year end exchange rates.
Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from settlement of transactions and from the translation at year end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not designated as net hedges in foreign
investments are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income within ‘Other
gains/(losses)’.
(iii) Presentation currency
The Group’s financial statements are presented in United States Dollars, as that presentation currency most reliably reflects the
global business performance of the Group as a whole. On consolidation, income statement items for each entity are translated
from the functional currency into USD at average rates of exchange where the average is a reasonable approximation of rates
prevailing on the transaction date. The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position items are translated into USD at period
end exchange rates.
Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net assets of entities with functional currencies other than USD are
recognised directly in the ‘Foreign currency translation reserve’. These translation differences are shown as other comprehensive
income in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair value as at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be a financial liability are recognised in profit and
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
Where the Group has not finalised the fair value assessment and verifications of individual assets or liabilities of acquired
businesses are in progress as at the reporting date, the fair value of individual assets or liabilities acquired during the current
financial year and the amounts of goodwill to be recorded are based on the Director’s best estimation. Any adjustments will be
recorded upon finalisation of the purchase price allocation, which must occur within twelve months of acquisition date.

(e) Revenue recognition
Speedcast generates four main types of revenue from its customers:
(i)

Managed network services

Revenue is earned through the provision of broadband access via VSAT (Very Small Aperture Terminal) satellite transmission
that utilises small satellite dishes and antennas that send high focused beams to the satellites or through Mobile Satellite
Services (MSS) through the satellite transmission of low-bit data, commonly voice, to handheld and other mobile devices.
Revenue for VSAT is typically invoiced monthly on a fixed fee and is earned over time for the provision of a set bandwidth with
unlimited usage. Revenue for MSS is typically invoiced monthly and earned at a point in time based on usage on a fixed price
per measured unit of data used.
(ii)

Managed network services

Equipment rental – Equipment rental revenue is earned through the provision of equipment required to receive VSAT and MSS
data. Where the equipment remains the property of Speedcast and a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
is maintained by Speedcast this represents an operating lease and revenue is earned over time at a fixed fee.
(iii) Wholesale Voice
Voice (Voice over Internet Protocol) revenue is generated via the sale of voice data on a wholesale basis to telecom customers,
the data is then on-sold to the end user or data may be sold by Speedcast direct to end users. Revenue is typically invoiced
monthly and is earned at a point in time on a fixed price per measured unit of data used.
(iv) Equipment sales and Installation
Revenue for equipment is earned at a point in time usually when the customer takes delivery and legal title to the equipment,
thus gaining control over its future use. Revenue from installation is earned over time and recognised on a percentage of
completion basis calculated from the total forecast revenue on the project multiplied by the ratio of costs incurred as a
percentage of total budgeted costs. Revenue is typically invoiced in arrears.
Some contracts include multiple performance obligations, such as the provision of network services, provision and installation of
equipment and software to multiple sites. Where a contract includes multiple performance obligations, the revenue associated
with each obligation is calculated based on the ratio of its stand-alone selling price for each obligation as a percentage of the
total stand-alone selling price of all elements to the total transaction price.
When invoiced, revenue is typically payable on normal commercial terms of the country of operation. If the revenue earned
exceeds the amount invoiced, accrued income is recognised. If the revenue earned is less than the amount invoiced a contract
liability, deferred revenue, is recognised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of a business and represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from a business combination upon which goodwill arose. Each cash-generating unit or groups of units
to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of cash-generating units are compared to their recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is taken first to goodwill and is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(g) Intangible assets
Intangible assets have been identified by the Group in the form of customer relationships, supplier contracts, trademarks and
brand names, research and development and software.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique products controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
•

it is technically feasible to complete the project;

•

management intends to complete the project and either use or sell it;

•

there is an ability to use or sell the asset;

•

it can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefit;

•

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are
available; and

•

the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the asset include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.
Research costs are expenses as incurred unless they are acquired through a business combination. Costs associated with
maintaining intangible assets are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected life of the assets, as follows:
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Customer relationships

4 to 5 years

Supplier contracts

5 years

Trademarks and Brand names

4 to 20 years

Software

1 to 7 years

Research and Development

6 years
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if indicators of impairment exist. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets, other than goodwill,
that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term and highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(j) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for equipment sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

(k) Financial assets
(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
(ii)

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. An expected credit loss model is applied under which an impairment loss is recorded for the
difference between the probability weighted estimate of the present value of expected cash flows and the present value of
contractual cash flows from a financial asset or group of financial assets.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
The criteria that the Group considers in estimating the probability weighted present value of expected cash flows include;
•

sovereign risk of the country of operation of the issuer;

•

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor; and

•

a breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments.

The amount of any impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the probability weighted average estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(l) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the average cost method and
comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable costs necessary to make the sale.

(m) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income during the financial year in which they are
incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates per annum:
Office equipment

5 to 7 years

Plant and equipment

2 to 17 years

Leasehold improvements

2 to 10 years

Motor vehicles

3 to 5 years

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of their expected useful lives or the term of the lease.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised within ‘Other
gains/(losses)’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

(n) Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date
in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(n) Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

(o) Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers and service providers. They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting is insignificant and in which case they are stated at historical cost.

(p) Provisions
Provisions for asset retirement obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pretax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in a provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

(q) Employee benefits
(i)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
(ii)

Performance-based bonus

The expected costs of performance-based bonuses are recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities for performance-based bonuses are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
(iii) Share-based compensation
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the equity instruments is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments granted:
•

including any market performance conditions;

•

excluding the impact of any service and nonmarket performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets); and

•

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Annual Report 2018

57

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)
(iv) Leave provisions
The liability for accruing annual leave and long service leave is recognised in ‘Employee provisions’ and measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using
the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on high
quality corporate bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows.

(r) Leases
(i)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
(ii)

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

(s) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowing costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the period
in which they are incurred.

(t) Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value.
The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
•

hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions; or

•

hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedges).

At the inception of the hedging transaction the Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions have been and will continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that qualify as net investment hedges are recognised within the ‘Foreign currency
translation reserve’. Changes in fair value of derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised within the ‘Fair value
reserve’. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately within ‘Other gains/(losses)’ in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

(u) Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options which vest immediately are recognised
as deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(v) Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of
the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period, but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

(w) Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share information for its ordinary shares.
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the basic earnings per share to take into account the after income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(x) Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”).

(y) Goods and services tax
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (“GST”), except where the amount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the relevant tax authority. Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the relevant tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables
in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Cash flows in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows are included on a gross basis amount and the GST component of cash
flow arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified
as operating cash flows.

(z) Parent entity financial information
The financial information for the parent entity, SIL, disclosed in note 32 has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated
financial statements, except as set out below:
(i)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities are accounted for at cost in financial statements of SIL.
Dividends received from subsidiaries and associates are recognised in the parent entity’s profit or loss when its right to receive
the dividend is established.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(z) Parent entity financial information (continued)
(ii)

Tax consolidation legislation

SIL and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation legislation.
The head entity, SIL, and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group account for their own current and deferred
tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group continues to be a stand-alone
taxpayer in its own right.
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, SIL also recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits assumed from entities in the tax consolidated group.
The entities have also entered into a tax funding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities fully compensate SIL for
any current tax payable assumed and are compensated by SIL for any current tax receivables and deferred tax assets relating
to unused tax losses or tax credits that are transferred to SIL under the tax consolidation legislation. The funding amounts are
determined by reference to the amounts recognised in the owned entities’ financial statements.
The amounts receivable (or payable) under the tax funding agreement are due on receipt of the funding advice from the head
entity, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of each financial year.
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as current amount
receivable from or payable to other entities in the Group.
Any differences between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under tax funding agreement are recognised
as a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidated entities.
(iii) Financial guarantees
Where the parent entity has provided financial guarantees in relation to loans and payables of subsidiaries for no compensation,
the fair values of these guarantees are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
(iv) Share-based payments
The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as a
capital contribution to that subsidiary. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary, with a corresponding credit to equity.

3 Financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies which focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Market Risk
Foreign exchange risk
The Group trades with international customers and suppliers and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from operating in
various currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises from those transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity entering into the transaction. Foreign currency risk also arises from assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the Group’s entities to which they relate.
The Group operates in an industry for which commercial transactions are primarily denominated in US dollars and as such
a large proportion of the Group’s revenues and costs are denominated in US dollars. The Group’s most significant foreign
currency exposures are in relation to Australian dollar (“AUD”), Euro and Great British Pounds.

60

Speedcast International Limited

3 Financial risk management (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
Net investment in foreign entity and respective hedges
In addition to investments in share capital during the period, entities within the Group held intercompany loans denominated
in US dollars, Great British Pounds, Euro and Angolan Kwanza which are deemed to meet the criteria of net investments in a
foreign entity. In addition, SIL held external borrowings denominated in US dollars which were designated as fair value hedges
of net investments in foreign entities. The combined net foreign exchange loss on these loans in 2018 of USD 34,603,000 (2017:
gain USD 15,220,000) has been recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income’ within the ‘Foreign currency translation reserve’.
There was no ineffectiveness recorded from net investment in foreign entity hedges during the period.
Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate risk arises principally from long-term borrowings. Interest
payable on debt facilities is subject to a floating margin component. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. To hedge this risk, and as a requirement of the agreement, the Group holds interest rate swaps to
partially hedge the cash flow risk.
All interest rate swaps held at year end are fully effective, designated hedges and any change in fair value of the hedges are
recorded in other comprehensive income as such any impact of changes in interest rate at the balance sheet date would have
nil impact on the current year reported profit (2017: nil).
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following variable rate cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and
interest rate swaps.
2018
Weighted avg
interest rate

2017
Balance
USD’000

Weighted avg
interest rate

Balance
USD’000

Cash and cash equivalents (note 14)

0.57%

79,654

3.76%

54,844

Borrowings (note 21)

5.52%

(644,637)

4.86%

(443,080)

Notional value of interest rate swaps
Net exposure to cash flow interest rate risk

423,760

184,980

(141,223)

(203,256)

Fair values
The following table analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation hierarchy:
Level 1
USD’000

Level 2
USD’000

Level 3
USD’000

Total
USD’000

–

–

–

–

At 31 December 2018
Deferred contingent consideration
Derivative financial instruments
– Interest rate swap contracts (note 22)

–

(6,199)

–

(6,199)

At 31 December 2017
Deferred contingent consideration

–

–

(13,879)

(13,879)

–

1,506

–

1,506

Derivative financial instruments
– Interest rate swap contracts (note 22)
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
Market Risk (continued)
The different levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); and
Level 3 – Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
•

quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

•

the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable
yield curves; and

•

other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

Only that portion of the deferred consideration that remains contingent as at the balance sheet date is held at fair value. The
deferred contingent consideration held as at 31 December 2017 related to the purchase of UltiSat (note 27). As forecast at
31 December 2017 UltiSat exceeded the thresholds for the maximum consideration to be paid. As at 31 December 2018 the
deferred consideration remains unpaid but is no longer contingent on future operating results.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets, including trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents,
and the Group’s other financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, obligations under finance leases and borrowings,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current liabilities, including
obligations under finance leases and borrowings, approximate to their fair value as their interest rates approximate to market
interest rates. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk of the Group arises from credit exposures to its customers
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group only places cash and deposits with reputable banks and financial institutions.
For credit exposure to customers, the Group trades only with recognised, credit worthy third parties. The Group’s policy is to
carry out credit verification procedures on new customers before grant of credit terms. In addition, the Group may request
customers to make deposits and advance payments before delivery of services or goods. Further disclosure of credit risk of
customers is set out in note 15.

Liquidity risk
The Group regularly monitors current and expected cash requirements, and its compliance with debt covenants, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from banks and other financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. Management believes there is no significant liquidity risk as the
Group has sufficient committed facilities to fund its operations.
The Directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s profit and cash flow projections prepared by Management. The
projections make key assumptions with regard to the anticipated sales, profit margins and cash flows from the Group’s
operations. These assumptions include an assessment of the impact of the uncertainties surrounding the industry but do
not include the potential impact of any significant worsening of the various conditions that the Group is operating in and
around the globe. The Directors, after making due enquiries, believe that there will be sufficient financial resources available
to the Group at least in the coming twelve months to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the
Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities:
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

–

–

46,140

4,980

Syndicated facility
Expiring within 1 year
Expiring between 1 and 5 years

Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank loan facilities may be drawn at any time in either AUD or USD
and have maturity of 4 years (2017: 2 years). The undrawn banking facilities are subject to annual review.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of each year into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. For variable rate borrowings the cash flows have been estimated based on the interest
rates applicable at the end of the reporting period including the effect of designated cash flow hedges.
Within 1
year
USD’000

1 to 5
years
USD’000

Greater
than
5 years
USD’000

Total
contractual
cash flows
USD’000

Carrying
amount of
liabilities
USD’000

204,230

26,671

–

230,901

227,446

42,072

116,692

614,402

773,166

631,395

At 31 December 2018
Trade and other payables
Borrowings and interest

16,045

–

–

16,045

15,756

262,347

143,363

614,402

1,020,112

874,597

119,441

16,059

723

136,223

135,604

Borrowings and interest

21,432

453,645

–

475,077

432,213

Deferred consideration

25,206

15,000

–

40,206

39,085

166,079

484,704

723

651,506

606,902

Deferred consideration
At 31 December 2017
Trade and other payables

4 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:
•

safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders; and

•

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group operates a policy to have available liquid funds of USD 50,000,000 and has a long term commitment to de-lever such
that the ratio of net debt to underlying EBITDA is reduced to 2.5.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt facilities or sell assets to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors net debt on the basis of the ratio of net debt to pro forma underlying
EBITDA. Capital management initiatives are undertaken when the ratio is forecast to approach limits imposed by the loan
covenants.
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4 Capital management (continued)
Loan covenants
Under the terms of the Group’s borrowing facilities, the Group is required to comply with certain covenants, including the
commitment not to exceed certain financial ratios tested semi-annually, commencing from 31 December 2018.
The covenants require that the ratio of net debt to pro forma underlying EBITDA, as defined in the agreement, does not exceed
4:1. Pro-forma EBITDA is based on the previous 12 months as if all Group members as at balance date were Group members for
the whole of the 12-month period.

Dividends
Relevant information on dividends paid during the year, and approved since the end of the year, has been included in note 24.

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
Accounting estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes assumptions concerning the future and the resulting accounting estimates may, by definition, differ from the
related actual results. The accounting estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Recognition and measurement of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in acquisition of
a business and subsidiaries
The determination, and allocation, of the consideration fair value to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in
business combinations is based on various assumptions and valuation methodologies requiring considerable judgment. For
further information refer to note 2 (d).

Useful lives of acquired customer relationships
The Group estimates the period over which customer relationships, recognised through business combinations, are expected
to provide benefit, or that similar relationships could be developed. The lower period becomes the useful life over which the
customer relationship is then amortised. The assessment of useful lives at acquisition date, and subsequent reassessments,
involves significant judgement. For further information refer to note 2 (g).

Income and indirect taxes
The Group is subject to income and indirect taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for these taxes, including the recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for uncertain tax positions, if any, based on the judgmental probability of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax or, in the case of indirect taxes, other operating expenses in the period in which such determination is
made. For further information refer to note 2 (n) and note 2 (y).

Consolidation of UltiSat Inc.
100% of the share capital of UltiSat Inc. was acquired on 1 November 2017. The company and its subsidiaries (“UltiSat”) are
managed through a Proxy agreement as required by the US National Industrial Security Program (“NISP”). The Proxy agreement
enables UltiSat to enter into contracts with the US Department of Defence that contain certain classified information.
The Proxy agreement is an instrument designed to mitigate the risk of foreign ownership, control or influence over a US entity
that has security clearance under the NISP. The Proxy agreement conveys the owner’s voting rights to the Proxy board and
places some restrictions on shareable information and interactions with other Group companies. There are three members of
the Proxy Board that are all US citizens, cleared and approved by the US Defence Security Service (DSS).
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5 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)
Consolidation of UltiSat Inc. (continued)
The Group maintains its involvement with UltiSat’s activities through normal business activity and liaison with the Chair of
the Proxy Board. The operational and governance activities and results are reviewed by Speedcast management. Speedcast
exercises its right within the Proxy agreement to make suggestions on the running of UltiSat and whilst these suggestions
are non-binding the Proxy Board must act in good faith, as reasonably prudent persons, to protect the legitimate economic
interests of Speedcast. These activities are all performed within the confines of the Proxy agreement such that UltiSat operates
its business within the requirements necessary to protect the US national security interest.
An assessment has been performed in accordance with AASB 10 Consolidated financial statements of whether, for accounting
purposes, the Group controls UltiSat. The Group is exposed to variable returns from its investment in UltiSat and there is deemed
to be sufficient power within the confines of the Proxy agreement for the Group to use its influence to affect those returns. As
such, under AASB 10, it is deemed that the Group controls UltiSat and therefore the results of UltiSat are consolidated in to the
Group’s consolidated accounts.

6 Revenue from continuing operations
Maritime
USD’000

Energy Government
USD’000
USD’000

EEM
USD’000

Total
USD’000

Year ended 31 December 2018
Managed network services

185,218

128,450

90,564

83,321

487,553

9,061

19,742

240

2,878

31,921

Managed network services – Equipment rental

–

–

–

23,957

23,957

25,385

10,082

6,451

37,746

79,664

219,664

158,274

97,255

147,902

623,095

181,075

174,941

13,718

88,452

458,186

Wholesale Voice
Equipment sales and Installation
Year ended 31 December 2017
Managed network services
Wholesale Voice

–

–

–

20,298

20,298

19,082

8,295

424

7,888

35,689

200,157

183,236

14,142

116,638

514,173

Equipment sales and Installation

As described in note 35, Speedcast have adopted the modified retrospective method of applying AASB 15 revenue from
contracts with customers, as such the prior year figures exclude the impact of the new standard. Whilst retrospective adaption
and restatement has not been performed, where information is available prior year revenues have been reclassified with
Wholesale Voice revenue and Equipment sales and installation revenue disclosed to aid comparability.
The majority of the contracts the Group enters into run for periods of between 1 and 10 years with the majority being over a 3
year period.

7 Other gains/(losses)
Gain on extinguishment of interest rate hedges
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Fair value gain/(loss) on deferred consideration

2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

3,031

–

(2,673)

(73)

261

(455)

–

(550)

619

(1,078)
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8 Staff costs
Salaries and other short term benefits
Share-based payment expense (note 12)

2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

94,251

90,499

1,458

1,021

95,709

91,520

2018

2017
restated
USD’000

9 Other expenses
Included within other expenses are the following items:

USD’000
Operating lease payments
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (restated) (note 15)

7,755

7,248

(428)

1,335

2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

316

1,584

316

1,584

(24,912)

(19,024)

10 Finance costs, net
Finance income:
Interest income
Interest expenses on:
Borrowings

–

(10)

(1,170)

(134)

Amortisation of loan establishment costs

(3,031)

(4,917)

Accelerated amortisation of loan establishment costs

(8,619)

–

(446)

(650)

Obligations under finance leases
Deferred consideration

Unwinding of fair value adjustments
Finance charges:

(228)

(443)

(1,356)

(678)

Finance costs

(39,762)

(25,856)

Finance costs, net

(39,446)

(24,272)

2018

Fees on undrawn facilities
Other bank charges

11 Income tax expense
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

Current tax

14,907

10,111

(Over)/under provision for prior years

(1,671)

580

(10,400)

(8,935)

2,836

1,756

Deferred income tax (note 19)
Total income tax expense
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11 Income tax expense (continued)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable tax
rate prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates as follows:
2018
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

Profit before income tax

4,764

7,748

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits/(losses) in the respective countries

1,096

1,748

2,308

3,726

Other assessable income

235

256

Non-assessable income

(802)

–

(1,671)

580

Tax effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Under/(over) provision for prior years

1,670

–

Recognition of previously unrecognised temporary differences

–

(534)

Effect of change in enacted tax rates

–

(4,020)

2,836

1,756

Unrecognised tax losses

Income tax expense

The aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period which is not recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is as follows:

Tax expense on other comprehensive income recorded directly in equity

2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

(7,458)

5,018

12 Share-based payment
Restricted Management Rights
Restricted Management Rights (“RMR”) were issued by the Company under the equity incentive plan on 12 August 2014, the IPO
date. The RMR effectively replaced certain rights to shares of Speedcast Acquisitions Limited which were issued by Speedcast
Acquisitions Limited to certain employees prior to the IPO.
Each RMR entitles the holder to acquire a share for nil consideration at the end of the relevant vesting period, subject to meeting
vesting condition. A total of 1.1 million RMR, representing approximately 0.9% of the issued share capital of the Company, were
issued on 12 August 2014 to the participants at no cost. No exercise price is payable in respect of the RMR.
The offer was divided into tranches of RMR with differing vesting periods. Each tranche of RMR will vest subject to the satisfaction
of the vesting condition over the vesting period relevant to that tranche. The vesting condition is continued employment with
the Group. Vesting will occur over a total period of approximately 4 years from grant date.
The tranches and vesting periods are as follows:
(i)

25% of the RMR will vest 12 months after grant date; and

(ii)

Following vesting of first tranche, at the end of each 3-month period another 6.25% of the RMR will vest if the participant
remains in employment with the Company.

The RMR in each tranche will lapse immediately if the vesting condition for that tranche is not satisfied at the end of the relevant
vesting period.
The RMR do not attract dividends, voting rights or any capital distributions.
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12 Share-based payment (continued)
Restricted Management Rights (continued)
Participants must not sell, transfer, encumber, hedge or otherwise deal with RMR. If the participant resigns, or the Company
terminates the participants’ employment in accordance with their employment contract, all unvested RMR will lapse, unless
otherwise determined by the Board. In a situation where there is likely to be a change of control, the Board has the discretion
to accelerate vesting of some or all of the RMR. Where only some of the RMR are vested on a change of control, the remainder
of the RMR will immediately lapse.
All RMR had been issued as at 31 December 2018. The weighted average remaining contractual life of RMR outstanding as at
31 December 2017 was 0.3 years.
The fair value of the RMR granted to employees is deemed to represent the value of employee service received over the vesting
period. Fair value was determined using the Monte Carlo simulation method. The factors considered in the valuation included
the terms and structure of the share scheme, price and volatility of companies in similar industries and any other relevant
information in relation to the shares such as dividend policy.

Long term incentive plan
In 2014, Speedcast established a long term incentive plan (“LTIP”) in order to facilitate remuneration for the Group’s Senior
Management and enhance the alignment of their interests with those of shareholders.
Offers may be made at the Board’s discretion to employees of the Group or any other person that the Board determines to be
eligible to receive a grant under the Plan.
The Plan Rules provide flexibility for the Company to grant one or more of the following securities as incentives, subject to the
terms of individual offers:
(i)

Performance rights;

(ii)

Options; and

(iii) Restricted shares.
Options are entitlements to receive a share on payment of any applicable exercise price. Performance rights and restricted
shares are an entitlement to receive shares for no consideration.
The Board may make offers at its discretion and any offer document must contain the information required by the Plan Rules.
The Board has the discretion to set the terms and conditions on which it will offer performance rights, options and restricted
shares in individual offer documents. Offers must be accepted by the employee and can be made on an opt-in or opt out basis.
Unless the Board determines otherwise, no payment is required for a grant of a performance right, option or restricted share
under the Plan.
In 2018, the Board made offers to the CEO, CFO and other members of Senior Management to receive a grant of the LTIP (“the
2018 LTIP”). The 2018 LTIP award was made on 15 May 2018, and comprised performance rights.
In 2017, the Board made offers to the CEO, CFO and other members of Senior Management to receive a grant of the LTIP (“the
2017 LTIP”). The 2017 LTIP award was made on 15 May 2017, and comprised performance rights.
There were no LTIP offers in 2016.
In 2015, the Board made offers to the CEO, CFO and other members of Senior Management to receive a grant of the LTIP (“the
2015 LTIP”). The 2015 LTIP award was made on 9 September 2015, and comprised performance rights.
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12 Share-based payment (continued)
Long term incentive plan (continued)
In 2014, the Board made offers to the CEO, CFO and other members of Senior Management to receive a grant of the LTIP (“the
2014 LTIP”). The 2014 LTIP award was made on 12 August 2014, the IPO date and comprised performance rights.
A performance right entitles the holder to acquire a share for nil consideration at the end of the performance period, subject
to meeting specific performance conditions. The number of performance rights granted will be based on a fixed percentage of
the relevant participant’s annual fixed remuneration and will be issued to the participant at no cost. No exercise price is payable
in respect of the performance rights.
Performance rights granted as part of all LTIP offers will vest subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions. The
performance conditions cover a performance period of at least 3 years.
•

the 2018 LTIP performance period commenced on 1 January 2018 and ends on 31 December 2020.

•

the 2017 LTIP performance period commenced on 1 January 2017 and ends on 31 December 2019.

•

the 2015 LTIP performance period commenced on 9 September 2015 and ended on 31 December 2018.

•

the 2014 LTIP performance period commenced on 12 August 2014 and ended on 31 December 2017.

The performance condition must be satisfied in order for the performance right to vest. For the LTIP schemes:
(i)

50% of the total performance rights will vest subject to the achievement of the Total Shareholder Return (TSR)
performance target for the Company exceeding the performance of the S&P/ASX Small Ordinaries Index (AUD) (Index)
over the performance period and subject to the participant being an employee at the end of the performance period (“TSR
component”); and

(ii)

50% of the performance right will vest solely subject to the participant being an employee at the end of the performance
period (“service component”).

If the performance target for the TSR component is not met the Board may at its absolute discretion issue up to 50% of the TSR
component.
Any performance rights that remain unvested at the end of the performance period will lapse immediately.
The performance rights do not attract dividends, voting right or any capital distributions.
Participants must not sell, transfer, encumber, hedge or otherwise deal with performance rights.
If the participant ceases employment for death, permanent disability or is otherwise determined to be a ‘good leaver’ by
the Board, unvested performance rights will vest in full, unless otherwise determined by the Board. If the participant ceases
employment in any other circumstances, all unvested performance rights will lapse, unless otherwise determined by the Board.
In a situation where there is likely to be a change of control, the Board has the discretion to accelerate vesting of some or all
of the performance rights. Where only some of the performance rights are vested on a change of control, the remainder of the
performance rights will immediately lapse.
The fair value of the LTIP rights granted to an employee is deemed to represent the value of employee service received over the
vesting period. The fair value is determined using the Monte Carlo simulation method. The factors considered in the valuation
included the terms and structure of the share schemes, price and volatility of companies in similar industries and any other
relevant information such as dividend policy and expected exercise pattern of the shares.
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12 Share-based payment (continued)
Movement in performance rights
A summary of the movement in unvested performance rights of the Company’s shared based compensation schemes is as
follows:
RMR

LTIP 2014

LTIP 2015(1)

LTIP 2017

LTIP 2018

Grant date

Aug 2014

Expiry date

July 2018

Aug 2014

Sep 2015

May 2017

May 2018

Dec 2017

Dec 2018

Dec 2019

Dec 2020

nil

nil

nil

nil

nil

465,276

278,130

592,741

–

–

Exercise price
As at 1 January 2017
Granted

Total

1,336,147

–

–

–

894,042

–

894,042

(265,876)

(255,410)

–

–

–

(521,286)

(14,292)

(22,720)

(63,871)

(222,201)

–

(323,084)

As at 31 December 2017

185,108

–

528,870

671,841

–

1,385,819

As at 1 January 2018

185,108

–

528,870

671,841

–

1,385,819

Vested
Forfeited

–

–

–

–

892,854

892,854

(118,401)

–

(375,293)

–

–

(493,694)

–

–

(104,875)

–

–

(104,875)

(66,707)

–

(48,702)

(96,474)

(23,715)

(235,598)

575,367

869,139

Granted
Vested
Lapsed
Forfeited
As at 31 December 2018

–

–

–

1,444,506

(1) The issue of LTIP 2015 incentives to the CEO were subject to receiving Shareholder approval at the Company’s Annual General Meeting in 2016.

The TSR component of the LTIP 2015 shares was not met, as such 50% of the total TSR component of the LTIP scheme lapsed.
On the 25 February 2019, the board reviewed the performance of the Company over the vesting period and the contribution
of the employees holding options and decided to issue all shares within the TSR component that were under their discretion
to issue. As such on 31 December 2018 314,626 rights had vested but were unissued (31 December 2017: 255,410). The shares
were issued on 8 March 2019. 60,667 options related to the LTIP 2015 scheme vested at the board’s discretion and were issued
to the outgoing CFO Ian Baldwin on 1 March 2018.
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of rights during the year ended 31 December 2018 was AUD 5.48
(2017: AUD 4.18).
Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the year in relation to shares issued under the
RMR and LTIP were USD 1,458,000 (2017 : USD 1,021,000).

13 Operating segments
Identification of reportable segments
The Group has identified its operating segment based on the reports reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) that are
used to make strategic decisions. All of the entities within the Group generate income from the provision of managed network
services, wholesale Voice and equipment in various geographical markets. The Group has one operating segment (2017: 2
operating segments meeting the aggregation criteria. During the period the reporting to the CODM of UltiSat Inc. (“UltiSat”),
which operates under a Proxy Board, was integrated with the rest of the Group).
The CEO also monitors revenues by vertical being Maritime, Energy, Government, and Enterprise and Emerging Markets (“EEM”)
and the information reviewed is consistent with that presented in note 2.
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13 Operating segments (continued)
Geographical information
The table below presents geographical information of total revenue based on customers’ geography, where that relates to a
vessel revenue is included in the Maritime category.
Maritime
USD’000

Australia
USD’000

Pacific
Islands
USD’000

EMEA
and other
USD’000

Asia
USD’000

Americas
USD’000

Total
USD’000

Year ended 31 December 2018

219,664

73,557

39,127

73,060

29,326

188,361

623,095

Year ended 31 December 2017

200,157

60,465

38,471

68,411

36,727

109,942

514,173

The table below presents geographical information of the Group’s Property, Plant and Equipment.
Maritime
USD’000

Australia
USD’000

Pacific
Islands
USD’000

EMEA
and other
USD’000

Asia
USD’000

Americas
USD’000

Total
USD’000

As at 31 December 2018

20,684

8,607

577

17,000

22,194

71,146

140,208

As at 31 December 2017

13,871

11,366

892

13,747

23,832

31,480

95,188

Major customers
There are no individual customers who contributed more than 10% of the total revenue in 2018 or 2017.

14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand

2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

79,654

54,844

Cash and cash equivalents includes USD 10,764,000 (2017: USD 2,309,000) which is restricted by legal or contractual arrangements.

15 Trade and other receivables
2018
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

Trade receivables

136,586

99,110

Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables

(21,078)

(10,180)

Trade receivables, net

115,508

88,930

20,369

25,144

Accrued income

75,477

27,780

Other receivables

23,604

8,329

234,958

150,183

(2,489)

(2,574)

Deposits and prepayments

Less: Non-current portion
Other receivables
Current portion

232,469

147,609

The carrying values of the trade and other receivables approximate their fair values.
The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables of USD
67,938,000 were past due (2017: USD 51,371,000).
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Movement of the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
2018

At beginning of year
Net provision for impairment of trade receivables (note 9)
Unwind of acquisition fair values
Provision utilised
Exchange differences
At 31 December

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

10,180

8,901

(428)

1,335

11,934

–

–

(319)

(608)

263

21,078

10,180

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables has been included in ‘Other expenses’ in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. Trade receivables are generally written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.
On acquisition of businesses the deemed cost of the trade receivable is its fair value that effectively includes a provision for
non-recovery. Initial net balances may be recovered at an amount greater than fair value or written off. Receivable balances
generated since acquisition have been provided against. The net impact of these transactions is accounted for under the net
provision for impairment of trade receivables within the profit and loss however the effect is to effectively gross up the trade
receivable balance and the provision for non-recovery as disclosed in the table above under the heading unwind of acquisition
fair values.

16 Inventories
2018

Equipment and spares
Work in progress
Less: Provision for Impairment

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

36,825

16,498

703

464

(8,602)

(2,032)

28,926

14,930

On acquisition of businesses the deemed cost of inventory is its fair value that effectively includes a provision for impairment.
Initial net balances may be recovered at an amount greater than fair value or scrapped. Inventory purchases since acquisition
have been provided against as required. The net impact of these transactions is accounted for through profit and loss however
the effect is to effectively gross up the inventory balance and the provision for impairment as disclosed in the table above.
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17 Property, plant and equipment
Communications
equipment
USD’000

Motor
vehicles
USD’000

Office
equipment
USD’000

Leasehold
Improvements
USD’000

Land and
buildings
USD’000

Total
USD’000

Opening net book amount

40,864

247

691

1,096

1,891

44,789

Acquisitions

61,271

–

2,896

2,269

2,724

69,160

Additions

21,355

–

1,050

624

118

23,147

Year ended 31 December 2017

Disposals
Depreciation
Exchange differences
Closing net book amount

(1,627)

(77)

(4)

(10)

(37)

(1,755)

(41,013)

(66)

(752)

(553)

(132)

(42,516)

2,047

11

33

128

144

2,363

82,897

115

3,914

3,554

4,708

95,188

As at 31 December 2017
Cost

186,961

452

6,016

5,424

4,831

203,684

(104,064)

(337)

(2,102)

(1,870)

(123)

(108,496)

82,897

115

3,914

3,554

4,708

95,188

Opening net book amount

82,897

115

3,914

3,554

4,708

95,188

Impact of applying AASB 15

6,391

–

–

–

–

6,391

Acquisitions

26,071

–

383

63

4,947

31,464

Additions

43,964

76

2,958

787

43

47,828

–

(557)

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount
Year ended 31 December 2018

Disposals
Depreciation
Exchange differences
Closing net book amount

(180)

–

(364)

(13)

(35,318)

(102)

(1,113)

(686)

(294)

(37,513)

(1,613)

(9)

(160)

(28)

(783)

(2,593)

122,212

80

5,618

3,677

8,621

140,208

262,974

502

8,369

6,124

8,893

286,862

(140,762)

(422)

(2,751)

(2,447)

(272)

(146,654)

122,212

80

5,618

3,677

As at 31 December 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

8,621

140,208
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18 Goodwill and intangible assets
Goodwill
USD’000

Customer
relationship
USD’000

Supplier
contracts
USD’000

Trademark
and Brands
USD’000

Opening net book amount

134,857

23,843

3,130

5,616

3,955

171,401

Acquisitions (restated)

Other(1)
USD’000

Total
USD’000

Year ended 31 December 2017
343,061

98,520

–

3,483

16,831

461,895

Additions

–

–

–

–

5,497

5,497

Amortisation

–

(20,077)

(3,130)

(1,971)

(3,432)

(28,610)

11,952

1,771

–

(18)

56

13,761

489,870

104,057

–

7,110

22,907

623,944

489,870

134,627

19,051

19,274

26,877

689,699

–

(30,570)

(19,051)

(12,164)

(3,970)

(65,755)

489,870

104,057

–

7,110

22,907

623,944

489,870

104,057

–

7,110

22,907

623,944

–

–

–

–

973

973

74,063

34,600

–

2,841

7,242

118,746

–

–

–

–

12,575

12,575

–

(30,034)

–

(1,364)

(8,605)

(40,003)

(5,278)

(766)

–

(20)

(12)

(6,076)

Exchange differences
Closing net book amount (restated)
As at 31 December 2017
Cost (restated)
Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount
Year ended 31 December 2018
Opening net book amount
Implementation of AASB 15
Acquisitions
Additions
Amortisation
Exchange differences
Closing net book amount

558,655

107,857

–

8,567

35,080

710,159

558,655

167,268

–

–

(59,411)

–

21,283

47,588

794,794

(12,716)

(12,508)

(84,635)

107,857

–

8,567

35,080

710,159

As at 31 December 2018
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

558,655

(1) Other includes, capitalised development costs, software and licences, and costs incurred as a result of winning customer contracts.

As at 31 December 2018, the recoverable amount of Cash Generating Units (“CGUs”) were determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations used cash flow projections for a 5-year period based on financial budgets approved by the
Board of Directors. The pre-tax discount rate and the terminal growth rate after the 5-year budgeted period applied to the cash
flow projections was 12% and 2% respectively. The budgeted gross profit margin and net profit margin were determined by
management for the CGUs based on past performance and its expectations for market development.
Discount rates reflect the Group’s estimate of the time value of money and risks specific to each CGU that are not already
reflected in the cash flows. In determining appropriate discount rates regard has been given to the weighted cost of capital of
the Group and business risks.
Management assessment of possible changes in the key assumptions has not identified any reasonably possible changes that
would cause the carrying amount of the CGUs assets, including goodwill, to be higher than the recoverable amount of the CGUs.
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19 Deferred tax
Deferred taxes comprise temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred tax assets
2018

Deferred tax liabilities
2018

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

1,072

1,125

(25,722)

(22,801)

Intangible assets
Unrealised FX gains/(losses)

5,420

3,131

(576)

(49)

Property plant and equipment

3,752

4,430

(33)

(511)

-

368

-

-

Accruals and provisions

8,993

4,965

-

-

Tax losses

4,607

1,583

-

-

IPO costs

4,348

255

(158)

(1,464)

Total deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

28,192

15,857

(26,489)

(24,825)

Balances subject to offset

(6,568)

(6,118)

6,568

6,118

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

21,624

9,739

(19,921)

(18,707)

2018
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

9,003

5,389

(7,300)

(14,357)

1,703

(8,968)

2018
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

(8,968)

(2,259)

Other

The following outlines the expected settlement of deferred tax balances:

Settled within 12 months
Settled after more than 12 months
Net deferred tax liabilities
The movement on the net deferred tax amounts is as follows:

Net deferred tax liabilities at beginning of year
Implementation of AASB 15
Acquisitions – net deferred tax liabilities (note 27)
Tax expense on other comprehensive income recorded directly in equity
Credited to tax expense (note 11)
Exchange differences
Net deferred tax liabilities at 31 December

426

–

(6,749)

(11,192)

7,458

(5,018)

10,400

8,935

(864)

566

1,703

(8,968)

The deferred tax balance includes an amount of USD 4,607,000 (2017: USD 1,583,000) which relates to carried forward tax losses
of subsidiaries in the Group. The increase in recognised tax losses is predominantly due to the acquisition of Globecomm.
For each subsidiary where the losses have been carried forward, Management estimates that future taxable income will be
available to recover the net deferred tax asset in each of these subsidiaries based on the business plans and budgets.
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19 Deferred tax (continued)
The following table shows the unrecognised tax losses of the Group
2018

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised
Potential tax benefit at domestic rates applicable to respective countries

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

209,786

216,521

35,843

36,901

The unrecognised tax losses were incurred by overseas subsidiaries where there is insufficient evidence to support the
generation of taxable income in the foreseeable future. The unrecognised tax losses predominantly relate to losses incurred on
subsidiaries prior to acquisition by Speedcast.

20 Trade and other payables
2018

Trade payables due to third parties

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

112,779

58,166

Other payables
Accrued charges and other creditors

89,934

61,117

Employee provisions

13,305

10,339

Customer deposits

9,665

5,955

Deferred revenue

33,938

16,415

Deferred consideration

15,756

39,085

162

4,163

1,763

27

164,523

137,101

277,302

195,267

(23,304)

(15,641)

Accrued interest payable
Obligations under finance leases
Total trade and other payables
Less: non-current portion
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred contingent consideration
Obligations under finance leases
Current portion

–

(13,879)

(1,165)

(18)

(24,469)

(29,538)

252,833

165,729

Trade payables are unsecured and usually payable 30-90 days from recognition.
Deferred consideration is payable on the UltiSat acquisition (2017: Ultisat and SAIT). A portion of the consideration as at 31
December 2017 was contingent on the future results of UltiSat.
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21 Borrowings
On 15 May 2018, the Group entered into a new USD 425 million, 7 year, Senior Secured Credit Facility in the US Institutional
Term Loan B market. In addition, on the same date, the Group entered into a new USD 100 million, 5 year, Senior Secured
Revolving Credit Facility.
Proceeds of the new facilities were used to refinance Speedcast’s pre-existing bank loans, which included a USD 385 million
Senior Secured Bank loan and a USD 60 million Accordion Facility.
On 27 September 2018 Speedcast secured a USD 175 million incremental term loan add-on to the Senior Secured Credit Facility,
The incremental term loan add-on was fully drawn down on the 14 December 2018 and used to fund the acquisition and related
expenses of the Globecomm business (refer to note 27) and to repay a portion of the Revolving Credit Facility.
The total facility limit of the Senior Secured Credit Term Loan B Facility decreases by 1% every year.
The new facilities diversify Speedcast’s funding sources, extend its debt maturity profile and improve the Group’s operational
flexibility.
Interest payable on the facilities is subject to a floating margin component. This exposes the Group to interest rate risk. To
hedge this risk and as a requirement of the agreement, the Group has entered into interest rate swaps contracts refer to note 3.
At 31 December 2018, interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts were due for payment as follows:
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

6,004

–

71,219

443,080

After 5 years

567,414

–

Less: Prepaid facility fees

(13,242)

(10,867)

631,395

432,213

Portion of bank loans due for repayment within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

Assets pledged as security
The Group has pledged a significant portion of its assets as security against the syndicated facility. The carrying amounts of
assets pledged for borrowings as at 31 December are:
2018
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

58,442

21,719

160,192

95,153

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

16,240

9,819

Amount due from related companies

89,028

79,456

3,111

4,196

121,381

47,309

Current tax receivable
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment

115,681

68,468

Goodwill and intangible assets

557,399

488,727

12,260

5,619

933

1,804

–

1,506

1,134,667

823,776

Deferred tax assets
Other
Derivative financial instruments
Total Group assets pledged as security
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22 Derivative financial instruments
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

(6,199)

1,506

(6,199)

1,506

Carried at fair value
Interest rate swap contracts (liability)/asset

23 Equity
Contributed equity
2018
Balance as at 1 January

2017

No. of shares

USD’000

No. of shares

USD’000

238,992,149

364,690

237,468,482

361,392

–

–

1,257,791

3,150

434,482

438

265,876

148

239,426,631

365,128

238,992,149

364,690

Issue of ordinary shares – acquisitions
Issue of ordinary shares – share-based payments

The Group does not have a limited amount of authorised capital or par value in respect of its shares.

Accumulated losses
2018

Balance brought forward
Impact of applying AASB 9
Impact of applying AASB 15
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

(63,497)

(57,224)

–

(3,488)

(1,291)

–

1,847

6,001

Dividend declared

(13,534)

(8,786)

Balance as at 31 December

(76,475)

(63,497)

The Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 was paid in May 2018 and an Interim dividend for the year ended 31
December 2018 was paid in October 2018. For details, please refer to note 24.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance as at 1 January
Currency translation difference
Deferred tax impact of designated hedges
Balance as at 31 December

2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

(1,336)

(14,514)

(12,293)

17,744

5,146

(4,566)

(8,483)

(1,336)

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign controlled entity are recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income’
and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net
investment is disposed.
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23 Equity (continued)
Share-based payment reserve
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

Balance as at 1 January

1,472

599

Value of employee services

1,458

1,021

Issue of shares
Balance as at 31 December

(438)
2,492

(148)
1,472

The share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the fair value of options at grant date issued to employees and Directors.
When shares are issued, the amount recognised in this reserve in relation to those shares is transferred to contributed equity.
For information relating to share options including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial year and
the options outstanding at year end please refer to the Directors’ Report and note 12.

Fair value reserve
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

Balance as at 1 January

1,054

–

Gain/(loss) in the year

(4,674)

Deferred tax impact of (gain)/loss
Gain recycled through profit and loss
Tax impact of gain recycling through profit and loss
Balance as at 31 December

1,402
(3,031)
910
(4,339)

1,506
(452)
–
–
1,054

The fair value reserve is used to recognise the change in fair value of financial instruments designated as qualifying cash flow
hedges.

Non-controlling interests
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

705

–

2,636

716

Profit/(loss) for the year

81

(9)

Currency translation difference

15

(2)

3,437

705

Balance as at 1 January
Business combinations (note 27)

Balance as at 31 December

The non-controlling interests reserve is used to record the portion of equity ownership of controlled subsidiaries that are not
attributable to the Group.
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24 Dividends
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

Interim dividend declared for the year ended (2018: AUD 2.40 cents, 2017: AUD 2.40 cents)

4,252

4,494

Final dividend declared for the year ended (2017: AUD 4.80 cents 2016: AUD 2.40 cents)

9,282

4,292

13,534

8,786

Dividends declared during the year

On 25 February 2019, the Board approved a final dividend of AUD 4.80 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The dividend will be paid on 23 May 2019 to all shareholders registered on the record date of 8 March 2019. The dividend is
unfranked. The ex-dividend date for dividend entitlement is 7 March 2019.
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

–

2,125

2018

Franking credit balance
Franking credit available for future financial years (tax paid basis, 30% tax rate)
The above amount represents the balance of the franking accounts as at the end of the period, adjusted for:
(i)

Franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable at the end of the period; and

(ii)

Franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends provided at the end of the period.

25 Earnings per share
Cents

2017
restated
Cents

Basic profit per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Group

0.77

2.51

Diluted profit per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Group

0.76

2.49

2018
Number

2017
Number

239,374,306

238,822,243

2,374,988

2,048,935

241,749,294

240,871,178

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating basic
earnings per share
Weighted average number of Restricted Management Rights and Long Term Incentive
Plan Rights
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share
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26 Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash inflows from operating
activities
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

4,764

7,748

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

37,513

42,516

Amortisation of intangible assets

40,003

28,610

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense
Fair value loss on deferred consideration
Finance costs
Foreign exchange (gain)/losses
Transaction costs

(261)

455

1,458

1,021

–

550

12,820

5,061

(39)

(131)

4,354

9,212

(3,031)

–

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(12,252)

(3,848)

(Increase) in trade and other receivables

(57,652)

(9,442)

55,216

10,111

(14,774)

(12,804)

68,119

79,059

Proceeds from cancellation of interest rate swap
Changes in working capital:

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
Tax paid
Cash generated from operating activities

27 Business combinations
Current year acquisitions
Globecomm Systems Inc.
On 14 December 2018, Speedcast completed the acquisition of Globecomm through the purchase of 100% of the share capital
of HCT Acquisition LLC the parent entity of the Globecomm group. Globecomm is a leading provider of remote communications
and multi-network infrastructure and the acquisition strengthens Speedcast’s global leadership with enhanced competitive
positions in Government, Maritime and Enterprise.
USD’000
Consideration
Cash

144,676

Total consideration

144,676

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted)
Cash and cash equivalents (restricted)
Trade and other receivables
Inventory
Corporation tax receivable
Property, plant and equipment (note 17)
Intangibles (note 18)
Trade and other payables

11,173
2,356
26,643
1,586
706
31,464
42,281
(38,546)

Deferred tax liabilities (note 19)

(6,330)

Total identified net assets

71,333

Goodwill (note 18)

73,343
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27 Business combinations (continued)
Current year acquisitions (continued)
Globecomm Systems Inc. (continued)
The purchase price allocation remains provisional due to the proximity of the acquisition to the year end.
The goodwill is attributable to the expected future profitability and expertise of Globecomm, as well as the synergies expected
to be achieved from integrating the business into the Group. No goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
Globecomm contributed revenues of USD 7,190,000 and profit of USD 317,000 to the Group during the period from acquisition
to 31 December 2018.
In Aria!
On the 30 October 2018, Speedcast acquired 20% of the share capital of In Aria! Limited whilst at the same time obtaining a call
option for the remaining 80% of the share capital. Control is exercised through the substantive rights to acquire the remaining
80% of the company for a price that is not prohibitive. The acquisition enhanced Speedcast’s overall product line in protected
video transmission, it also added to the Group’s capabilities in providing services to the Media industry.
USD’000
Consideration
Cash

1,364

Total consideration

1,364

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents

2,626

Trade and other receivables

1,315

Inventory
Intangible assets (note 18)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 19)

154
2,402
(419)

Trade and other payables

(2,798)

Non-controlling interests

(2,636)

Total identified net assets

644

Goodwill (note 18)

720

The purchase price allocation remains provisional due to the proximity of the acquisition to the year end.
The goodwill is attributable to the expected future profitability and expertise of In Aria!, as well as the synergies expected
to be achieved from integrating the business into the Group and Speedcast’s sales channels. No goodwill is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.
Speedcast have opted to recognise the non-controlling interest at the proportionate share of the fair value of the net identifiable
assets at the date of the acquisition.
In Aria! Contributed revenues of USD 317,000 and profits of USD 115,000 to the Group during the period from acquisition to 31
December 2018.
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27 Business combinations (continued)
Prior year acquisitions
Harris CapRock
On 1 November 2016, the Group entered into a definitive agreement to acquire 100% of the businesses of Harris CapRock, a
leading provider of communications networks for remote and harsh environments, primarily in the Maritime and Energy markets.
The initial close was completed on 1 January 2017. The acquisition was funded via a fully-underwritten AUD 295 million
Accelerated Renounceable Entitlement Offer, with the balance funded by a fully-underwritten syndicated debt facility. All
consideration has been paid in full in the year.
USD’000
Consideration
Cash
Deferred contingent consideration
Total consideration

417,091
2,134
419,225

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventory

4,044
61,199
3,737

Property, plant and equipment (note 17)

66,818

Intangible assets (note 18)

81,759

Deferred tax assets (note 19)

3,006

Trade and other payables

(63,530)

Fair value of bandwidth supply contracts

(15,165)

Non-controlling interests

(716)

Total identified net assets

141,152

Goodwill (note 18)

278,073

The goodwill is attributable to the expected future profitability and expertise of Harris CapRock, as well as the synergies
expected to be achieved from integrating the business into the Group.
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27 Business combinations (continued)
Prior year acquisitions (continued)
UltiSat Inc.
On 23 July 2017, Speedcast entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of the share capital of UltiSat Inc., a leading provider of
remote communications and professional services to Governments and to International Government Organisations and NonGovernmental Organisations.
The following table summarises the consideration paid, the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired at the acquisition date.
The purchase price accounting exercise was finalised in the year and the fair value of inventory, trade receivables, trade and
other payables, intangible assets and deferred tax positions was updated.
USD’000
Consideration
Cash

63,696

Deferred contingent consideration

38,465

Total Purchase Consideration

102,161

Provisional fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents

2,000

Trade and other receivables

16,231

Inventory

1,014

Property, plant and equipment (note 17)

2,342

Intangible assets (note 18)

37,075

Current tax receivable

2,554

Trade and other payables

(9,845)

Deferred tax liabilities (note 19)

(14,198)

Total identified net assets

37,173

Goodwill (note 18)

64,988

The goodwill is attributable to the expected future profitability and expertise of UltiSat in the government sector, as well as the
synergies expected to be achieved with the Group subject to the confines of the Proxy Agreement. No goodwill is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Additional information
Acquisition related costs of USD 4,354,000 (2017: USD 9,212,000) have been charged to transaction related costs in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2018.

28 Commitments
Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not yet purchased is as follows:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
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2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

8,834

2,587

28 Commitments (continued)
Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain of its office premises under non-cancellable operating leases. Leases are normally negotiated for
an average term of 1 to 5 years. The lease expenditure charged in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income during the year is disclosed in note 9.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2018
USD’000

2017
USD’000

No later than 1 year

10,449

5,187

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

24,756

15,227

Later than 5 years

27,090

8,740

62,295

29,154

29 Related party transactions
The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

Key Management Personnel compensation
Key Management Personnel includes the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Operations, Business Unit
Heads and the Board of Directors. Their remuneration included within employee expenses for the year is shown below:

Short-term employee benefit
Share-based payments

2018
USD

2017
USD

2,473,637

3,117,843

706,671

626,492

3,180,308

3,744,335

The Remuneration Report presented at the beginning of the annual report contains details of the remuneration paid or payable
to each member of the Group’s Key Management Personnel for the year ended 31 December 2018.

30 Principal operating subsidiaries
The following is the list of the principal operating subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2018 all entities are engaged in
the provision of satellite communication services:
2018
Interest Held

2017
Interest Held

Hong Kong

100%

100%

Speedcast Australia Pty. Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Speedcast Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Singapore

100%

100%

CapRock UK Limited

United Kingdom

100%

100%

Maritime Communication Services, Inc.

United States of America

100%

100%

Speedcast Communications Inc.

United States of America

100%

100%

UltiSat Inc.

United States of America

100%

100%

Globecomm Systems Inc.

United States of America

100%

–

Globecomm Network Services Corp.

United States of America

100%

–

Name

Country of incorporation

Speedcast Limited
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31 Deed of Cross-Guarantee
The parent entity, Speedcast International Limited, and its subsidiaries listed below are parties to a deed of cross guarantee,
executed on the 21 December 2017, under which each company guarantees the debts of the others. By entering into the deed,
the wholly-owned entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a financial report and Directors’ report under
ASIC Corporations (Wholly-owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785.
The subsidiaries subject to the deed are:
(i)

Speedcast Australia Pty Ltd

(ii)

Speedcast Group Holdings Pty Ltd

(iii) Speedcast Managed Services Pty Ltd
(iv) Satellite Communications Australia Pty Ltd
(v)

Oceanic Broadband Solutions Pty Ltd

(vi) CapRock Communications (Australia) Pty Ltd
These companies represent a closed group for the purposes of the class order.
The Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, comprising the closed group, after eliminating all transactions between parties to the deed of cross guarantee are
shown below.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
2018
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

Revenue from continuing operations

126,397

99,414

Cost of equipment and bandwidth services

(65,606)

(60,711)

(9,156)

11,644

Other gains
Dividend income

3,000

–

Staff costs

(11,751)

(9,557)

Other expenses

(24,122)

(13,750)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(2,945)

(3,397)

Amortisation of intangible assets

(4,600)

(1,605)

7,163

(8,748)

(15,554)

(11,077)

Transaction related costs
Finance costs, net
Reversal of impairment of investment in subsidiaries
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

–

94,265

2,826

96,478

(2,179)

(3,417)

647

93,061

(3,272)

1,054

(14,878)

3,462

Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified to profit and loss
Change in fair value of interest rate swap cash flow hedges
Currency translation difference
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Change in fair value of cancelled interest rate swap cash flow hedges
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
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(3,940)

–

(21,443)

97,577

31 Deed of Cross-Guarantee (continued)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
2018
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

Cash and cash equivalents

13,451

13,285

Trade and other receivables

50,054

19,591

ASSETS
Current assets

Inventories
Amount due from related companies
Total current assets

2,035

2,440

833,493

674,888

899,033

710,204

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

10,129

12,258

Goodwill and intangible assets

25,360

32,766

220,090

229,449

Deferred tax asset

5,952

1,739

Other receivables

151

1,538

Investment in subsidiaries

Derivative financial instruments
Total non-current assets
Total assets

–

1,506

261,682

279,256

1,160,715

989,460

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
49,015

31,674

Borrowings

6,004

–

Income tax payable

2,790

1,791

146,507

151,518

204,316

184,983

609,391

432,214

456

210

6,199

–

Trade and other payables

Amount due to related companies
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Total non-current liabilities

616,046

432,424

Total liabilities

820,362

617,407

Net assets

340,353

372,053

Contributed equity

326,882

326,444

Other reserves

(37,151)

(17,899)

50,622

63,508

340,353

372,053

EQUITY

Retained earnings
Total equity
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32 Parent entity financial information
The following information has been extracted from the books and records of the parent entity, SIL, and has been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.
The financial information for the parent entity has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position
2018
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

Current assets

447,443

250,792

Non-current assets

731,004

672,734

1,178,447

923,526

Assets

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities

176,015

32,935

Non-current liabilities

615,590

432,213

Total liabilities

791,605

465,148

326,883

326,444

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Contributed equity
Other reserves

(69,754)

Retained earnings

129,713

140,150

386,842

458,378

3,097

83,770

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company

(8,216)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

(61,538)

19,865

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company

(58,441)

103,635

Profit for the year includes USD nil (2017: USD 94,265,000) relating to reversals of previous investment impairments.
The parent entity had nil contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: nil).

33 Contingent liabilities
Outstanding legal cases arising from acquisition of Harris CapRock
Entities acquired as part of past acquisitions, most notably Harris CapRock on the 1 January 2017, were subject to certain legal
cases, most significantly in relation to employment law in Brazil and Angola. Adequate provision has been included in the
financial statements to cover any exposure to the Group that is not subject to indemnity by Harris Corporation.
Other than as noted above, the Group did not have any other material contingent assets or liabilities as at 31 December 2018.
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34 Auditors’ remuneration
2018
USD

2017
USD

773,938

739,979

66,732

448,790

–

172,553

840,670

1,361,322

Audit and review of financial statements

701,481

669,706

Taxation services

494,918

144,065

–

60,456

Remuneration of auditor of the parent entity PricewaterhouseCoopers Australia (“PwC”)
Audit and review of financial statements
Taxation services
Transaction related services
Total remuneration of PwC
Remuneration to other related entities of PwC

Transaction related services

–

7,626

1,196,399

881,853

Audit and other assurance services

346,188

449,580

Taxation services

334,932

274,473

10,881

9,662

692,001

733,715

Other services
Total remuneration of other related entities of PwC
Remuneration to auditors other than PwC or its related entities

Transaction related services
Total remuneration to auditors other than PwC or its related entities

35 Changes in accounting policy
As described in note 2, two new accounting standards became effective for the reporting period commencing on 1 January
2018. The method of application and impact on the financial statements for each policy is described below.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Method of application
Speedcast has adopted the modified retrospective method of application. Under this method, all differences between the
previous revenue policy and the new policy are taken to retained earnings at 1 January 2018 and prior year financial statements
are not restated.
Impact of applying AASB 15
Prior to the implementation of AASB 15, and where installation fees were recoverable from the customer, revenue and related
costs were recognised as incurred at the date of installation. Under AASB 15, the installation is deemed to be part of the same
performance obligation as providing the relevant equipment. As such, fees related to installation and the respective costs are
recognised at the same time as the equipment revenue.
Where the equipment is leased to the customer, any fees related to installation are deferred and recognised over the length of
the contract. The costs incurred in relation to the installation are capitalised to property, plant and equipment and amortised
over the course of the contact. Where the equipment is sold to the customer, there is no change in the timing of recognition of
revenue or expenses.
Commission costs are paid by Speedcast directly as a result of winning contracts. Under the previous policy these were expensed
as they became payable per the Group’s commission plan. Under the new standard, these costs are capitalised as intangible
assets and amortised over the length of the contract or, if related to several contracts, amortised over the average length of the
relevant contracts.
Certain costs relating to tendering for previous construction contracts were capitalised when it was deemed probable that the
contract would be won. Under the new standard, these costs can only be capitalised if they were only incurred if the contract
was won.
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35 Changes in accounting policy (continued)
AASB 9 Financial Instruments
Method of application
Speedcast have applied full retrospective application in accordance with AASB 108 Changes in accounting policy, errors and
estimates, for all impacts of AASB 9 and have not taken any of the transition provision exemptions.
Impact of applying AASB 9
Under AASB 9, the Group is required to revise its bad debt impairment methodology. Under the new model, a bad debt provision
is made for “expected losses” and is calculated based on the probability weighted average of the outcome of recovery of the
trade receivable, being a financial asset. Under the previous policy, a bad debt provision was calculated based on an incurred
loss model such that provisions are raised on individual receivables when it is deemed probable a loss will be incurred.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, being
the country where the receivable is held and the days past due. This has resulted in an increase in the total provisions held and
a small impact to the bad debt expense in the comparative period.

Impact on the financial statements
As a result of the changes in the Company’s accounting policies, prior year financial statements have been restated for AASB 9.
The adjustments arising from AASB 15 are recognised in balance sheet adjustments on 1 January 2018.
The following tables show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
Profit and Loss impact of applying AASB 9 Financial Instruments for the year ended 31 December 2017
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income (extract)
Other expenses
Profit before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)
Profit for the year

2017
(prior to application)
USD’000

Impact of
AASB 9
USD’000

2017
restated
USD’000

(53,831)

775

(53,056)

6,973

775

7,748

(1,436)

(320)

(1,756)

5,537

455

5,992

5,546

455

6,001

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
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35 Changes in accounting policy (continued)
Impact on the financial statements (continued)
Balance sheet impact of applying AASB 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers as at
31 December 2017
31 December
2017
(prior to
application)
USD’000

Impact of
AASB 9

31 December
2017
(restated)

Impact of
AASB 15

1 January
2018
(restated)

USD’000

USD’000

USD’000

USD’000

151,548

(3,939)

147,609

(835)

146,774

225,518

(3,939)

221,579

(835)

220,744

Property, plant and equipment

95,188

–

95,188

6,391

101,579

Goodwill and intangible assets

623,944

–

623,944

973

624,917

9,438

301

9,739

151

9,890

Total non-current assets

732,650

301

732,951

7,515

740,466

Total assets

958,168

(3,638)

954,530

6,680

961,210

165,729

–

165,729

4,809

170,538

170,984

–

170,984

4,809

175,793

Trade and other payables

29,538

–

29,538

3,437

32,975

Deferred tax liabilities

19,312

(605)

18,707

(275)

18,432

481,063

(605)

480,458

3,162

483,620

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position (extract)
ASSETS
Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Total current assets
Non-current assets

Deferred tax assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

652,047

(605)

651,442

7,971

659,413

Net assets

306,121

(3,033)

303,088

(1,291)

301,797

(60,464)

(3,033)

(63,497)

(1,291)

(64,788)

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

305,416

(3,033)

302,383

(1,291)

301,092

Total equity

306,121

(3,033)

303,088

(1,291)

301,797

EQUITY
Accumulated losses
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35 Changes in accounting policy (continued)
Impact on the financial statements (continued)
Profit and Loss impact of applying AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers for the year ended 31 December 2018

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income (extract)

2018
(excluding
AASB 15 impact)
USD’000

Impact of
AASB 15

2018
(as presented)

USD’000

USD’000

621,609

1,486

623,095

(340,021)

3,090

(336,931)

Staff costs

(99,015)

3,306

(95,709)

Other expenses

(58,623)

(60)

(58,683)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(33,271)

(4,242)

(37,513)

Amortisation of intangible assets

(38,467)

(1,536)

(40,003)

2,720

2,044

4,764

Revenue from continuing operations
Cost of equipment and bandwidth services

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)
Profit/(loss) for the half year

(2,366)

(470)

(2,836)

354

1,574

1,928

Owners of the Company

273

1,574

1,847

Non-controlling interests

81

-

81

Attributable to:
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35 Changes in accounting policy (continued)
Impact on the financial statements (continued)
Balance sheet impact of applying AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers as at 31 December 2018

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position (extract)

31 December
2018
(excluding
AASB 15 impact)
USD’000

Impact of
AASB 15

31 December
2018
(as presented)

USD’000

USD’000

233,364

(895)

232,469

346,433

(895)

345,538

Property, plant and equipment

134,969

5,239

140,208

Goodwill and intangible assets

707,416

2,743

710,159

Deferred tax assets

21,521

103

21,624

Total non-current assets

866,395

8,085

874,480

1,212,828

7,190

1,220,018

248,870

3,963

252,833

258,315

3,963

262,278

Trade and other payables

21,672

2,797

24,469

Deferred tax liabilities

19,774

147

19,921

673,036

2,944

675,980

Total liabilities

931,351

6,907

938,258

Net assets

281,477

283

281,760

(76,758)

283

(76,475)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

278,040

283

278,323

Total equity

281,477

283

281,760

ASSETS
Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Total current assets
Non-current assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

EQUITY
Accumulated losses

36 Events after the balance sheet date
On 25 February 2019, the Board approved a final dividend of AUD 4.80 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The dividend will be paid on 23 May 2019 to all shareholders registered on the record date of 8 March 2019. The ex-dividend
date for dividend entitlement will be 7 March 2019. The dividend will be unfranked for Australian taxation purposes.
On 8 March 2019 314,626 shares were issued in full settlement of the 2015 LTIP scheme, as set out in note 12.
Other than the above, there have been no other material post balance sheet events since 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’
DECLARATION
In the Directors’ opinion:
(a)

the financial statements and notes set out on pages 45 to 93 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i)

complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements; and

(ii)

giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 December 2018 and of its performance
for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b)

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable; and

(c)

at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the extended closed group
identified in note 31 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become, subject by virtue
of the deed of cross guarantee described in note 31.

Note 2(a) confirms that the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
The Directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer as required by
section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated on 29 March 2019.

Pierre-Jean Beylier
Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director
29 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Speedcast International Limited

Report on the audit of the financial report
Our opinion
In our opinion:
The accompanying financial report of Speedcast International Limited (the Company) and its
controlled entities (together the Group) is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(a) giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2018 and of its
financial performance for the year then ended
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
What we have audited
The Group financial report comprises:
●
●
●
●
●
●

the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year then
ended
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2018
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies
the directors’ declaration.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
report section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant
to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 75
Level 11, 70 Franklin Street, ADELAIDE SA 5000, GPO Box 418, ADELAIDE SA 5001
T: +61 8 8218 7000, F: +61 8 8218 7999, www.pwc.com.au
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Our audit approach
An audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement. Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial report.
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an
opinion on the financial report as a whole, taking into account the geographic and management
structure of the Group, its accounting processes and controls and the industry in which it operates.
The Group’s activities involve the provision of satellite bandwidth services to maritime, energy,
government and other markets. The Group has operations and entities in many countries, including
Australia, Hong Kong, United States of America, Singapore and United Kingdom.

Materiality

●

For the purpose of our audit we used overall Group materiality of $3.2 million, which represents
approximately 2.5% of the Group’s EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation)
of the Group excluding acquisition related costs.

●

We chose Group EBITDA adjusted for acquisition related costs because, in our view, it is the benchmark
against which the performance of the Group is most commonly measured. The adjustment to EBITDA for
specific items of revenue and expense associated with acquisitions, seeks to remove the impact of items which
are not expected to recur from year to year or otherwise significantly affect the underlying trend of
performance from continuing operations.

●

We utilised a 2.5% threshold based on our professional judgement, noting it is within the range of commonly
acceptable thresholds.

●

We applied this threshold, together with qualitative considerations, to determine the scope of our audit and
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements on the
financial report as a whole.

Audit Scope
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●

Our audit focused on where the Group made subjective judgements; for example, significant accounting
estimates involving assumptions and inherently uncertain future events.

●

The Group audit is planned and led by our Group audit team in Australia. We and component auditors in
Malaysia and the United States of America conducted audit procedures over the financial information of the
most financially significant entities, which are based in Australia, Hong Kong, Singapore and the United
States of America.

Speedcast International Limited

●

Additionally, specific risk focused audit procedures in relation to the Group’s entities in the United Kingdom
and Angola were performed. When determining where it was necessary to perform specific procedures, we
focused on entities where our planning procedures identified specific areas of risk.

●

We note that outside the entities highlighted above, the Group includes other entities which individually do
not contribute materially to the overall Group result. We obtained an understanding of these entities and
performed analytical procedures over their financial balances.

●

Audit procedures were performed by the Group audit team over the consolidation process and balances
recorded at a Group level. The audit work carried out at entity level, together with the additional procedures
performed at Group level, in our view, provided us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion on the
Financial Report of the Group as a whole.

●

We ensured that the audit teams both at Group and at entity levels had the appropriate skills and
competencies. This included engaging specialists and experts to address aspects of our audit work in relation
to taxation and business combinations.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial report for the current period. The key audit matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Further, any commentary on the outcomes of a
particular audit procedure is made in that context. We communicated the key audit matters to the
Audit and Risk Committee.
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue Recognition
(Refer to note 2(e) and note 6)
Speedcast have multiple revenue streams with
customers which can include the provision of
equipment, bandwidth services and related
support arrangements.
For many Speedcast operations, broadband access
fees related to bandwidth services are invoiced in
advance of service delivery and an adjustment is
made at each balance date by the Group so that
amounts invoiced in advance are not
inappropriately recorded as revenue prior to
bandwidth access being supplied by Speedcast.
The Group also records accrued revenue in
circumstances where services have been provided
but not yet invoiced at balance date.
Amounts recorded in respect of deferred revenue
and accrued revenue are material, as is revenue as
a whole, and as such revenue recognition was a
key audit matter.

We performed the following procedures in respect of
revenue recorded:
● We developed an understanding of each significant
revenue stream, being managed network services,
managed network services - equipment rental,
wholesale VoIP and equipment sales and
installation, and the basis used to recognise
revenue.
● We tested a sample of revenue transactions
(including accrued revenue) to evaluate whether
they were appropriately recorded as revenue. This
included:
○ making enquiries of management; and
○ agreeing the amounts recorded to
supporting evidence, where appropriate,
including customer contracts
● For a sample of deferred revenue amounts we
tested whether the amount recognised in the
current period was consistent with services
supplied per the terms of the customer agreement.
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Revenue Recognition (continued)
The Group has also adopted AASB 15 ‘Revenue
from contracts with customers’ effective from 1
January 2018.

We performed the following procedures in respect of the
transition to AASB 15 ’Revenue from contracts with
customers’.
Specifically:
● We understood managements’ process for assessing
the accounting implications of the new standard.
● We assessed the appropriateness of management’s
adjustments on transition to AASB15 .
● We agreed the adjustments to supporting schedules
and calculations.

Accounting for business combinations
(Refer to note 27)
Speedcast made two acquisitions in the current
year (InAria! Limited effective 30 October 2018
and Globecomm Systems Inc effective 14
December 2018) The purchase price accounting
for these acquisitions was provisional at the date
of authorisation of the financial report.
In addition, the Group finalised the accounting
for the previous year’s acquisition of UltiSat Inc.
The accounting for these business combinations
was a key audit matter given the acquisitions of
Globecomm Systems Inc. and UltiSat Inc. were
material to the Group and involved significant
judgements, including:
●
●

98

Estimation of the purchase
consideration, particularly in respect of
contingent consideration payable.
Estimation of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired, in particular
customer relationships. Under
Australian Accounting Standards, the
Group is required to estimate the fair
value of assets and liabilities acquired.
This estimate involved making
judgements on the value of relationships
acquired and the period over which
acquired customer relationships are
expected to provide benefit to Speedcast.

Speedcast International Limited

For the acquisition of Globecomm Systems Inc., we
performed the following procedures:
● Read the sale and purchase agreement to identify
any contingent purchase consideration. No
contingent consideration was identified in the
agreement.
● We assessed the Group’s provisional estimate of the
fair value of assets and liabilities acquired including
the Group’s basis for determination of the customer
relationship intangible balance and goodwill.
For the UltiSat acquisition which was finalised in the current
year, we performed the following procedures:
● We agreed the fair value of assets and liabilities
acquired to valuation reports prepared by the
Group’s valuation adviser or separate Group
calculations. The valuation reports included
discounted cash flow models (the “models”)
calculating the value of customer relationship
intangibles asset;
● For the customer relationship intangible asset we
performed the following:
○ Assessed the underlying assumptions used
in the models, including customer
attrition rate and discount rate;and
○ Assessed whether the cash flow inputs
used in the models were reasonable
compared to actual performance.
● For other significant fair value adjustments not
included in the valuation report, we agreed the fair
value of assets and liabilities to the underlying
calculations, and performed the following:
○ Assessed the appropriateness of the
Group’s calculation; and
○ Obtained and considered supporting
documentation.
● We were assisted by valuation experts as
appropriate, including in relation to the assessment
of discount rates used.

Tax effect accounting
(Refer to notes 11 and 19)
Speedcast operates in a number of countries, each
with different tax regimes. The Group is required
to understand the tax laws in each jurisdiction
and appropriately apply these to each entities’ tax
calculations and the overall Group tax position.
The accounting for taxes was a key audit matter
because of the complexity associated with
different tax jurisdictions and judgements
requiring consideration when preparing the
Group’s tax calculations. In particular, we note
there are:
●

●

●

Tax calculations for individual entities
with significant current or deferred tax
recorded during the period which are
subject to different tax jurisdictions and
rules.
Consolidated tax models used to
calculate the Group tax balances which
are manual and complex in nature and
therefore may have an increased risk of
error.
Deferred tax assets recorded by the
Group, some of which relate to tax
losses, which require judgement by the
Group in assessing whether there will be
enough future taxable profits in order for
these assets to be realised.

We performed the following procedures:
● Identified key tax jurisdictions and balances across
Speedcast by developing an understanding of the
nature of the Group’s tax structure and controls in
place to manage the Group’s tax reporting
requirements.
● For those individual entities identified with
significant income tax expense or recorded tax
payable, we agreed the key inputs in the tax
calculations to the relevant general ledger balance
and assessed the appropriateness of:
○ Permanent differences included in the
calculation of the income tax expense; and
○ Accounting and tax bases included in the
calculation of deferred tax assets and
liabilities.
● For the Group tax consolidation we agreed key
inputs to supporting documentation including
underlying entity tax calculations. We tested the
mathematical accuracy of the tax consolidation
model.
● As part of our work we assessed the recoverability
of deferred tax balances in particular where
balances related to tax losses.
We were assisted by PwC tax experts and specialists in
performing our work over tax effect accounting.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018, but does not include
the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditor's report, the
other information we obtained included the Director’s Report and Operating and Financial Review.
We expect the remaining other information to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report, including the Chairman’s Letter and Chief Executive Officer’s Report.
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express an opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
When we read the other information not yet received, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the directors and use our
professional judgement to determine the appropriate action to take.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar1.pdf. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Report on the remuneration report
Our opinion on the remuneration report
We have audited the remuneration report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 31
December 2018.
In our opinion, the remuneration report of Speedcast International Limited for the year ended 31
December 2018 complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.
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Responsibilities
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
remuneration report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Andrew Forman
Partner

Adelaide
29 March 2019
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ASX ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION
ASX Additional Information
Additional information required by the ASX Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere in this report is set out below.
This information is effective as at 1 April 2019.

Securities Exchange
The Company is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

Voting Rights
Ordinary Shares
On a show of hands, every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each share
shall have one vote.

Options
No voting rights

Unissued Securities
Options issued 1,444,506

Substantial Shareholders
Substantial shareholders as disclosed in substantial shareholder notices given to the Company are as follows:
Number of shares

Percentage held %

1 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED

67,662,673

28.22%

2 J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED

49,835,857

20.79%

3 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED

33,096,310

13.81%

4 BRISPOT NOMINEES PTY LTD <HOUSE HEAD NOMINEE A/C>

14,844,359

6.19%

5 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED-GSCO ECA

12,361,638

5.16%

177,800,837

74.17%
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Distribution of Equity Security Holders
Number of shares

Number of holders

100,001 and Over

213,697,299

45

10,001 to 100,000

12,012,161

541

5,001 to 10,000

6,044,012

809

1,001 to 5,000

7,096,578

2614

891,208

1728

239,741,258

5,737

11,452

253

Number of shares

Percentage held %

1 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED

67,662,673

28.22%

2 J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED

49,835,857

20.79%

3 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED

33,096,310

13.81%

4 BRISPOT NOMINEES PTY LTD <HOUSE HEAD NOMINEE A/C>

14,844,359

6.19%

5 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED-GSCO ECA

12,361,638

5.16%

6 NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED

11,743,665

4.90%

7 ARGO INVESTMENTS LIMITED

3,267,742

1.36%

8 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD <AGENCY LENDING DRP A/C>

2,908,390

1.21%

9 BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD <DRP>

2,499,606

1.04%

10 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED <COLONIAL FIRST STATE INV A/C>

1,880,507

0.78%

11 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD <IB AU NOMS RETAILCLIENT DRP>

1,734,474

0.72%

12 ATHINA VEZYRI

1,441,295

0.60%

979,944

0.41%

14 SARGON CT PTY LTD <HENROTH PTY LIMITED>

900,000

0.38%

15 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD <HUB24 CUSTODIAL SERV LTD DRP>

889,035

0.37%

16 MR MATTHEW BRENDAN RYLAND

775,000

0.32%

17 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED – A/C 2

612,763

0.26%

18 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD <IOOF INVMT MNGT LTD DRP>

500,000

0.21%

19 AMP LIFE LIMITED

476,217

0.20%

20 MR WAI KIT CHUNG

474,586

0.20%

208,884,061

87.13%

30,857,197

12.87%

239,741,258

100.00%

1 to 1,000

Unmarketable parcels

Twenty Largest Shareholders

13 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED <NT-COMNWLTH
SUPER CORP A/C>

Balance of Register
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CORPORATE
DIRECTORY
Directors

Registered Office

Mr John Angus Mackay (Chairman)
Mr Pierre-Jean (‘PJ’) Joseph Andre Beylier
Mr Grant Scott Ferguson
Mr Peter Edward Jackson
Mr Michael Martin Malone
Mrs Caroline Van Scheltinga (appointed 5 April 2018)
Mr Michael Stuart Berk (resigned 17 May 2018)
Mr Edward Francis Sippel (resigned 31 December 2018)

Unit 4F Level 1, 12 Lord Street, Botany NSW 2019, Australia
Telephone: +61 2 9531 7555

Company Secretary
Mr Dominic Thomas Edward Gyngell
Mr Clive Cuthell
Mr Andrew William Metcalfe (resigned 28 June 2018)

Principal Place Of Business
Speedcast Headquarters
Unit 4F Level 1, 12 Lord Street, Botany NSW 2019, Australia
Telephone: +61 2 9531 7555

Share Registry
Link Market Services Limited
Level 12, 680 George Street Sydney, NSW 2000, Australia

Notice Of Annual General Meeting

Australia Postal Address:
Locked Bag A14, Sydney South NSW 1235

The Annual General Meeting of Speedcast International
Limited will be held at:

Website: www.linkmarketservices.com.au
Email: registrars@linkmarketservices.com.au
Telephone: + 61 1300 554 474 (toll free within Australia)

InterContinental Hotel Sydney
117 Macquarie Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia
Time: 2:00pm (Sydney local time)
Date: Monday, 20 May 2019

Stock Exchange Listing
Speedcast International Limited shares are listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) under the ASX code
SDA.

Speedcast Website
www.speedcast.com
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